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Shanghai Turbo is a precision engineering group that specialises in
the production of precision vane products, namely stationary vanes,
moving vanes and nozzles. These vanes are the key components
of steam turbine generators used for power generation in power
plants, power stations and/or substations. They are also essential
components mounted onto steam turbine generators to maximise
the efficiency of steam flow in the generation of electricity.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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& AW AXRAER LA

Y Y Y Y Y

./ ./ ./ ./ ./

Mr Liu Ming Mr Jack Chia Dr Daniel Liu Mr Kelvin Tan Mr Raymond Lim
XIBRFEE NEHEE X EE LT FRABFEE MREEH ST

Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director

FERITIEMIES

Non-Executive
Independent Director

FEHITHIES

Non-Executive
Independent Director

FEPUTHILES

Chief Executive Officer and  Lead Independent Director
Executive Director HEMSIES
HEWMTERIITES

BEST SUCCESS (HONG KONG) LIMITED®

=] 5 (&F &) A R @ &

Mr Liu Ming Dr Daniel Liu
XRRSEE XA EE L
Director Director
o o

CHANGZHOU 3D TECHNOLOGICAL
COMPLETE SET EQUIPMENT CO., LIMITED®

FEMNHTZERAKREREHR QA

. J . J . J . J
Mr Liu Ming Mr Jiang Ronglin Mr Henry Lim Mr Isaac Peh
XIERSEE ZRMEE I HE HfiERE
Executive Director General Manager Lead Supervisory Financial Controller
WITES REZIE Committee Member JLEE

BHEKE

(1) Incorporated in Cayman Islands. Investment holding company. Audited by Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP.
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(2) Incorporated in Hong Kong. Investment holding company. Reviewed by Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP for consolidation purpose.
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CEO’S STATEMENT
BERITE BIA

“We strive to make the most of
the opportunities available amid
a tough operating climate.”

“REBEXRENBEERE, HAMIBRER
W, ZRAENEN. ”

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

We strive to make the most of the opportunities available amid a
tough operating climate.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

FY2016 proved to be another challenging year for Shanghai Turbo,
as we continue to deal with the industry restructuring situation
previously outlined. Upstream power generator manufacturers have
taken more of the production work in-house, leaving downstream
players like us having to compete for a smaller volume of less
lucrative work. This has been compounded by the government
policy situation. In January 2017, the National Energy Administration
revealed a five-year plan which emphasises the construction of more
renewable energy sources such as wind, solar, and hydropower.

The bright spot in all of this is that our export sales increased in
FY2016 compared to FY2015, due in no small part to the upgrading
and replacement of our machines with 10 new CNC machines
imported from ltaly. Japanese customers, in particular, have exacting
technical specifications, and our upgraded capabilities have given
them confidence that we are able to meet their requirements. This
has translated into more orders from Mitsubishi Heavy Industries.
We hope to continue building on this in FY2017.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Group revenue decreased a marginal RMB 4.5 million from FY2015
to FY2016, and gross profit margin also declined, from 28.2%
in FY2015 to 22.4% in FY2016, reflecting higher manufacturing
overheads and outsourced costs. The decrease in revenue reflects
the current industry conditions, and our major customers are also
facing margin pressure.

In FY2016 we had RMB 14.1 million net cash generated from
operating activities, and RMB 32.3 million net cash used in investing
activities, mainly for the new machinery which is critical to our day-
to-day operations as well as our business development efforts. Net
cash generated from financing activities was RMB 4.0 million as
we tapped on our bank facilities for capital investment. As at 31
December 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of RMB 45.7
million. We have proposed a first and final dividend of RMB 0.125
per share, balancing the desire to reward our loyal shareholders
against the capital needs of the Group.

The trade receivables situation has seen some improvement over
the course of this year. The outstanding amount as at 31 December
2016 was RMB 164.0 million, compared to RMB 168.3 million at
the end of FY2015, and the proportion of trade receivables due for
more than 3 months was 22%, compared to 31% at 31 December
2015. In FY20186, bills receivables amounted to RMB 37.9 million, of
which RMB 26.7 million is bank-secured. Nonetheless, due to slow
collections from one of our major customers in China, we made an
impairment of RMB 4.5 million this year.

Management will continue to closely monitor the receivables
situation and we hope to see more improvements in future. We will
also continue to vigorously puruse opportunities for more orders
from overseas customers.

LIU MING
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

s K (o]

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Group revenue decreased a marginal 3% from RMB 141.5 million in
FY2015 to RMB 137.0 million in FY2016, mainly due to challenging
conditions in the domestic market and reduced orders from the
Group’s major customers. However, in 3Q2016 the Group recorded
strong revenue and profit mainly due to overseas orders in the
quarter, and for the full year there was a total of RMB 29.9 million in
overseas orders, compared to RMB 22.9 million in FY2015.

Cost of sales increased by 5% compared to FY2015, due to a
combination of higher consumables and outsourcing costs, and a
RMB 2.7 million provision for obsolete inventory. Together with the
decrease in revenue, this resulted in a gross profit of RMB 30.6
million in FY2016, 23% lower than in FY2015. FY2016 gross profit
margin was 22.4%, compared to 28.2% in FY2015.

Administrative expenses decreased by RMB 1.2 million due to lower
professional fees and lower accruals of CEO incentives. Other
operating expenses was RMB 4.7 million in FY2016, mainly due to
an impairment of RMB 4.5 million for the Group’s trade receivables
in view of slow collections from a major domestic customer. The
Group incurred finance costs of RMB 226,000 in FY2016 (FY2015:
nil) due to interest on a RMB 7.0 million 1-year tenure loan, which
is due in April 2017. Income tax was RMB 2.7 million in FY2016,
compared to RMB 7.1 million in FY2015.

The Group’s FY2016 net profit was RMB 2.3 million, compared to
RMB 11.0 million in FY2015.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s non-current assets stood
at RMB 136.1 million, compared to RMB 111.9 million as at 31
December 2015. This was mainly due to a RMB 35.4 million
acquisition in property, plant and equipment, attributable to the
acquisition of 10 new CNC machines during FY2016. The Group
also spent RMB 3.0 million on repair and refurnishing of buildings.

Over the same period, current assets decreased from RMB 276.5
million to RMB 253.0 million, mainly due to a RMB 13.1 million
reduction in cash and cash equivalents, and a RMB 4.9 million
decrease in Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments;
this was primarily due to the reclassification of deposits paid for the
new CNC machines, into property, plant and equipment.

The Group’s total liabilities increased from RMB 61.9 million at 31
December 2015 to RMB 67.0 million as at 31 December 2016. This
was mainly due to a 1-year bank loan of RMB 7.0 million, which is
due in April 2017 and was used for capital investment.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash generated from operating activities in FY2016 was RMB
14.1 million, compared to RMB 31.2 million in FY2015, mainly due
to lower pre-tax profit and an increase in inventories in FY2016.

Net cash used in investing activities was RMB 32.3 million in
FY2016, higher than the RMB 11.1 million in FY2015, due to the
acquisition of machinery amounting to RMB 35.9 million in FY2016.

Net cash generated from financing activities was RMB 4.0 million
in FY2016, compared to RMB 2.4 million used in FY2015, mainly
due to a RMB 7.0 million bank loan as well as RMB 4.0 million net
reduction in pledged deposits in FY2016.

In view of the above, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
decreased from RMB 58.8 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB
45.7 million as at 31 December 2016.
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Decreased slightly in 2016. At
the same time, the proportion
of bills receivables to trade
receivables increased from
2015 to 2016.
MR BT T PEEIRT, &

i SC SR TE USSR AT 14 8 A 2015
FE2016FFEIEM .

rDecreased mainly due to the )
reclassification of deposits paid

RESULTS AT A GLANCE
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for new CNC machines into
PPE in 2016.
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rDecreased primarily due to
lower profit before tax, higher

capital investment in 2016
compared to 2015.
NETHNEZRREH20165FE
EHBATFAR ESNERRE.
. S
( Increased mainly due to the )
acquisition of 10 units of CNC
in 2016.
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Decreased due to the
settlement of VAT payable and
reclassification of expenses.
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A 1 year tenure bank loan

of RMB 7,000,000 loan was
obtained in April 2016, due in
April 2017. The interest rate on
the loan is 4.57% per annum.
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SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD

/tiﬁiﬂhﬂi%ﬁﬂﬁi}%

31-Dec-16  31-Dec-15 Variance
20164F 20154F -

128318 128318 HERIE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
Assets &=
Current assets: RENE
Inventories FH 33,582 30,218 3,364 1%
Trade receivables VLN 164,045 168,314 (4,269) -3%
Other receivables, H At R i =%
deposits and ;;fmi;qﬂiﬂﬁ 4,713 10,207 (5,494) | -54%
prepayments T\A&TL{TJ-T\A
Land use right b 251 251 - -
Cash and cash MekNeE .
equivalent o 50,402 : 67,557 = (17,155)  -25%
Total current assets  RENEZRIT 252,993 276,547 | (23,554)  -9%
Non-current EREN ‘ : ‘ :
assets: BT
Property, plant and Pl HEE R : : o0y |
equipment N 126,332 101,846 24,486 24%
Land use right b 9,787 10,038 (251) . -3%
Total non-current EmEiEait 136,119 111,884 24,235 22%
assets
Total assets “BERIt 389,112 388,431 681 -
Current liabilities: TR
Trade payables B ATHRFR 52,409 46,254 6,155  13%
Other payables and HEAtb R TR TR i
aceruals ST 4765 11,169  (6,404) -57%
Income tax payable IMEpRiECe) 91 2,104 (2,013) -96%
Bank Loan RITHISX 7,000 - 7,000 NM
Total current P AR G ‘ ‘ e
liabilities it 64,265 59,527 4,738 8%
Non-current ERF
liabilities: ff=
Deferred tax liabilities ~ HBIEFF1SHL 2,765 2,413 352 15%
Total non-current N 3 3 3 3
liabilities ERsAZREIT 2,765 2,413 352 1 15%
Total liabilities fRETT 67,030 61,940 509 8%
EQUITY AND s =
LIABILITIES ML fR
Capital and reserves: ZEARMiEZS
Share capital AR 55,409 55,409 - -
Share premium B AN 78,470 81,527 - -
Statutory reserve EEHEES 30,526 29,696 830 3%
Translation deficit INHIRE SRS (3,207) (3,372) 165 5%
Retained earnings BEWE 160,884 : 163,231 : (5,404) : -3% :
Total equity Wzt 322,082 326491  (4,409) -1%
fotal equity and WERAEST 389,112 388,431 681 -

liabilities



Mainly due to reduced orders
from local market, however
overseas orders increased.
FEFEEREATHNITER L.
B RESMHERRBITIEM.

mmreased mainly due to )
a combination of higher
consumables and outsourced
costs, as well as additional
provision for obsolete inventory
for 2016.
FEFEREZM R AN A
L. IN2016EBIAERR
Gt )

There is a finance cost incurred
in 2016 due to interest incurred
on RMB 7,000,000 1 year
tenure loan due in April 2017.
20165 M 5 B FA A FI B 2R .
FBERA~ETF7, 000, 000 AR
RIVEFEHASITR, SRR TF20174F4

:

H
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Increased due to impairment
made for trade receivables for
2016 due to slow collections
from the Group’s major
customer in the domestic
market.
FEFRERERNEFHYTER
SE NIRRT 201 658 T /A

o

31-Dec-16  31-Dec-15 Variance
20165 20154 o
12831H 12831H HREkIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 %
Revenue =R ON 136977 141475  (4498) 3%
Cost of sales SHERA (106,333) . (101,540) = (4,793) 5%
Gross profit EFI5E 30,644 39,935 (9,291) -23%
Other operating income  EAEEUIA 2783 3182 (399) -13%
Finance Cost 45 2% (226) - - NM
Selling and HER
distribution expenses SieERE (2,866) (2,949) 83 -3%
Administrative expenses  {TEIZEH (20,684) (21,849) 1,165 = -5%
Other operating expenses HfthizE 2 (4,664) (222) 1 (4,442): NM
Profit before income tax FriS#iEIF];iH 4,987 18,097 (13,110) -72%
Income tax expenses Friswi#m (2,694)  (7073) 4379 -62%
Profit for the year AFIE 2,293 11,024  (8,731) -79%
Other comprehensive HESRE
income/ (expenses) N/ @R 165 (41) 206 NM
Total comprehensive B AU ST
income attributable to =4y 2L )
equity shareholders of UHZEA EMR?JI 2,458 10,983 : (8,525) -78%
R A RO FE

the Company
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Income Statement ¥RzE%R
(in RMB'000) (Frt ARM)
Revenue &g 182,784 150,586 166,400 161,495 141,475 136,977
Gross profit E %1} 72,023 80,747 68,039 63,708 39,935 30,644
Profit before tax #iajZ % 52,267 56,665 45,709 43,056 18,097 4,987
Net profit after tax #ifE:%F| 36,217 41,481 43,821 34,434 11,024 2,293
Balance Sheet &= fafkdk
(in RMB'000) (FARM)
Property, plant and equipment Rz, " ERi&& 140,215 125,561 114,079 115,192 101,846 126,332
Inventories 7% 6,793 16,703 22,384 40,508 30,218 33,582
Trade receivables RzUstiiczx 72,140 83,679 121,569 166,580 168,314 164,045
Cash and bank balances I & K 5R1TE 59,935 75,727 85,817 53,775 67,557 50,402
Trade payables Rz{FMzR 40,716 35502 41,748 60,923 46,254 52,409
Other payables and accruals Hfth {50 % Mt H 14,455 18,079 16,436 5291 11,169 4,765
Bank Loan $R{TEYFK - - - - - 7,000
Shareholders' Equity &R 230,459 257,761 294,616 322,375 326,491 322,082
Total assets #EF=&1t 291,646 315,113 355,959 390,666 388,431 389,112
Total liabilities fafmEit 61,187 57,352 61,343 68,291 61,940 67,030
Cash Flow &R E
(in RMB'000) (FTARM)
Operating activities &l iEz) 66,790 34,071 23,481 -4,979 31,189 14,105
Investing activities % %= ETh -41,924 -4,542 -6,470 -20,215 -11,125 -32,254
Financing activities g% &%) 5,258 -27,044 -5 -13,664 -2,404 3,948
Net movement &R 30,124 2,485 17,006 -38,858 17,660 -14,201
Financial Ratios f&5tE %
Earnings per share (RMB) Ei& 4% (ARM) 0.13 0.15 0.16 0.13 0.40 0.08
%%;;?;f;}g"(‘i%e%hare (312) 084 094 107 117 1189 1173
Dividend Yield (%) 22 (%) 10.5 12.3 5.9 8.1 5.1 2.9
Dividend Payment Quantum (RMB’000) 13.734 6,867 _ 13734 6,867 3.434

IFEREEH (FTARM)

l 0 SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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Revenue Bl
(RMB million) (BEATTARM)

166.4
161.5

150.6 1415
| I I 137.0

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Net Profit After Tax i /5 /%%
(RMB million) (BATARM)

438
415
344
1.0
23
0 =

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Dividend Yield Chart (%) lREEFE (%)

10.9 10.5

12.3
8.1
59
51
' ' 2.9

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Shareholders started receiving dividends from 2010

B B201 0 F IR BIRR S

Earnings per share ElR&E K *
(RMB cents) (ARM)

40.00*

15.95

15.10
12.54

8.4

g o

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

*A10to 1 share consolidation was completed on 15 May 2015.
TE20154F5 A15HEM T — 1 0B A1 BRI R 1B & 3.

Net Asset Value per share BB EFZ4EE *
(RMB cents) (ARM4)

1189.00% 1173 00

117.36
93 .84 107.26 | |
o 0 8

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

*A10to 1 share consolidation was completed on 15 May 2015.
TE2015F5 A15HEM T —H10BR A1 BRI R 1B & 3.

Dividend Payment Quantum (RMB’000)
IR EEE (FTARM)

13,734 13,734 13,734

6,867 6,867 6,867
3,434
: L

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Started paying dividends from FY2009
B2009M B EEFHIRTR R AR 2
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EESMRA

MR LIU MING, Age 43

XIRRSc4E, £F#443

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
BFEBITERNITES

Diploma in food technology from Jiangsu Province Foodstuff Technical School
FETHERB IV FRATE

Certification holder in Corporate Management at Tsinghua University
FELEIEA F Al ETEIEE

Date of appointment as Chief Executive Officer: 13 November 2009
F{EHHA: 2009118130

Date of appointment as Executive Chairman: 16 March 2010
ZRERNPITER: 201043816H

Date of last re-election as Executive Chairman: 7 February 2015
TEMEEAPITER: 20156287H

Length of service: 11 years (as at 31 December 2016)
BRSEHA: 114 (BiZE2016512831H)

Served on the following Board Committees BETUTEEERS

* Nominating Committee - Member o IEZERS — KR
Present directorships in other listed companies T{FEMb FTHARER

« NIL e

Present principal commitments BHeiEERE

(other than directorships in other listed companies) (BRIBEE M ETH AR ESIN)
« NIL e

Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding FESFFIEEREM EFHTARIZES
three years (2014-2016) (20145E 2 20165F)

« NIL o Xk

Background and experience LB E5ZIS

Mr Liu Ming works on the formulation and execution of overall business  X|BB&E4 A= EFMMITERBNIWN ZER S H
strategies and policies. He is also responsible for key decision-making  4t. fbth A ZMBERNE~ZERESE, 1T
on matters such as capital expenditure, and oversees the production and ~ $H. FREITH]. AFEXRRKAIBIINEE.
operations, marketing, quality control, public relations and technology

departments.

Mr Liu Ming joined the Group in 1997 as a quality supervisor and was  XIRB%E4 T1997EMNER, EEREEE,
subsequently promoted in 1999 to General Manager. Mr Liu Ming FHBERET1999FARMASEE, XPFLET
previously started his career in 1991 at Changzhou City Di Er Liang Ku, 19914 7E R 58 Z 4R B FF i i BOBR L £
before joining Golden Apples Foodstuff Co., Ltd. as a supervisor, where he TEZ%'%@;E?ZEE?WE'EL BIESERR
was responsible for the supervision of confectionery production from 1992 @ARMEE, HTEEHANES

to 1997.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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MR JACK CHIA SENG HEE , Age 56

ANmlfE, Fiks6

LEAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

BREMUESE

Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the National University of Singapore

MR EZXF 20 FFE L F L

Master of Arts Degree in International Relations from

the International University of Japan

HAEFRA Z Efn X 7 F i1 F T

Fellow of Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants

FIEAFIFSTHIT SRS

General Manager Program at Harvard Business School

E[EIG FXF S EIEIRFE

Date of appointment as Director: 1 February 2008

Z{EHHA: 200842H1H

Date of appointment as Lead Independent Director: 1 May 2016

SRERNEFEMIES: 2016FE581H

Date of last re-election as Independent Director: 30 April 2016

TEMERTAMIESE: 201654530H

Length of service: 8 years 11 months (as at 31 December 2016)

REEHA: 8FE1ANE (i E20165812831H)

Served on the following Board Committees
* Audit Committee — Member

* Nominating Committee — Chairman

* Remuneration Committee — Chairman

Present directorships in other listed companies

Listed companies

» Combine Will International Holdings Limited
» Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited

» Debao Property Development Limited

* mm2 Asia Limited

* AGV Group Limited

Present principal commitments
(other than directorships in other listed companies)
* NIL

Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding
three years (2014-2016)
» Sunray Holdings Limited (Chairman, Nominating Committee)
» China Hongcheng International Holdings Limited
(Chairman, Remuneration Committee and Nominating Committee)

Background and experience

Mr Chia has spent more than 20 years in both the private and public
sectors, substantially in Japan and China, with Arthur Andersen, Singapore
Technologies, the Government of Singapore Investment Corporation (GIC)
and the International Enterprise Singapore Board, in consulting, marketing,
asset management and government advocacy. Currently, Mr Chia is a
professional director, specialising in corporate governance matters, and is

residing mainly in Singapore and Chongging, China.

BRETUTESERS
e HITERES — KA
e REZERS — EF
e HZERS — £E

MERM EHARES
EHAH
REERERERAR
HERIERBRAR
EEERBIRAT
mm237 i A PR F)
AGV Group Limited

HaixER%E
(BRIEEEHM EHATEEN)
e T

HE=FRIEEHME EHARZES
(20145 220165F)
o ZIHITRBMRAT (£FE, BBERSD)
P EHIEERMERERAT
(XfE, FHERSNREZERS)

BFRE52E

RN S R H GRS T 20F HIET ],
FEAHASHE, PANERBEHINES
iy SRANRARHR . AN BUF 4R 3522 B B n
WERRE % REEEER. 1TH, BHTER
EHMESRFRS. Bul, tR—aFWE
E, TETRUERNEE. MBEEHMES
E 8
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EETRER

DR DANIEL LIU DANJUN, Age 47
XA EF L, Fili47
NON-EXECUTIVE NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
FEHITIEMIES
Harbin Institute of Technology, Ph.D in Electrical Engineering and Automation
Pa R X F W EFEHIR Byt i1+ F i
Date of appointment as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director: 1 May 2016
ZEMEERIERITIFMIEE: 201655818
Length of service: 8 months (as at 31 December 2016)
BRSSEER: 84N (BiZE2016512H31H)

Served on the following Board Committees BREFUTEEERS
+ Audit Committee — Member e HIIERES — BHR
+ Nominating Committee — Member e REZERS — MR
* Remuneration Committee — Member o HEIERS — KR
Present directorships in other listed companies NEEM T AREE
« NIL
e L
Present principal commitments B EENRS
(other than directorships in other listed companies) (M FTASIESESN)
« NIL . 9€
Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding BE=FREFEBETARZES
three years (2014-2016) (2014£E 2 2016F)
. NIL e
Background and experience LR54%

Dr Daniel Liu Danjun started his career as a Research Associate Professor at X3 ZE{#H -7/ INTEL B335 E AL
Beijing University of Technology’s Department of Automation, before movingto A Z B AREESHEHARAZE], BF
Intel's China Research Centre as a Senior Researcher for Human-Computer v sy Ty A% gai{t ZEFREITRR. =

Interaction Technology. Thereafter, he held technical and sales positions at B, LT LEALNSBEEE—R
electronics and technology companies, and various industry groups, as well HEBTEAATRETUMER AR
as being Chairman for a number of technology companies. Dr Liu has a Ph.D BT, EERERAGE T AEHE

in Electrical Engineering and Automation, as well as Master’s and Bachelor's - J
degres in Material Science and Engineering, from the Harbin Institute of EH R B AL L LRI R AR

Technology. Bt E#.
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MR TAN WEE PENG KELVIN, Age 52
FrRiBFIEE, FiR52

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
FPUTHIES

Master of Business Administration from the National University of Singapore
IR E A FE T B EELF

Bachelor of Accountancy (First Class Honours) from

the National University of Singapore

FMEE LA Z R FF L (FERE) F(i

Programme for Management Development, Harvard Business School
IE B FE b ir & 14 E IR iE

Fellow, Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants

B FFIF= IR =R

Member, Singapore Institute of Directors

HIMEEE SR

Date of appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director: 16 July 2016
TEMEFERIERITHIESE: 201657H16H

Length of service: 5.5 months (as at 31 December 2016)
BR&{EHA: 5.5 8 (HZE2016512831H)

Served on the following Board Committees BETUTEEZERS
* Audit Committee — Chairman e fi+§§\§ - ITE
+ Nominating Committee — Member ° i"-f%:f”;‘\z - Eﬁ”;l
+ Remuneration Committee — Member o FMIERZ — WS
Present directorships in other listed companies HERt ETARESR
Listed companies EHmATE
* IREIT Global — Independent Director e IREIT Global — JHsEZE
 Viking Offshore and Marine Ltd — Independent Director e Viking Offshore and Marine Ltd
« Transcorp Holdings Ltd — Lead Independent Director — MUEE
e Transcorp Holdings Ltd
—EHEMNES
Others Hite
* Unusual Ltd — Non Executive Independent Director e Unusual Ltd — JEHITIMIIESE
+ Several other private companies o EZRMABIRQARES
Present principal commitments EnEa:dnt
(other than directorships in other listed companies) (BREM ERARESEIN
« Golden Equator Capital — Portfolio Mentor o TEAAX — HAMAEES
« Makara Capital Partners — Investment Advisor o MakaraBiA — $RZMIE)
Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding BE=ZEMBEFHEHME LT ARZES
three years (2014-2016) (20145 Z=20164F)
« WE Holdings Ltd — Lead Independent Director o WE Holdings Ltd — BERMIES
Background and experience LER5218

Kelvin has more than 25 years of professional and management experience  pR{EEALE AT MEN AL EFESIIE
in both private and public sectors in Singapore. He has held senior positions  #zid25% g5\ 5&IRZL . 2 ZEAETOS
with AETOS Security Management, PSA International, and Temasek Holdings. R, HSERER, 5RDEEE

B{EER.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR RAYMOND LIM SIAN HEONG, Age 67

MELHL L, Fie67

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

FEHITHRIEE

Date of appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director: 16 November 2016

ZEMEERERNITHIESE: 20165F11F316H

Length of service: 1.5 months (as at 31 December 2016)

BR&{EEA: 1.5 B (i ZE2016512831H)

Served on the following Board Committees
* Audit Committee — Member
* Remuneration Committee — Member

Present directorship in other listed companies
* NIL

Present principal commitments

(other than directorships in other listed companies)

« Director, Changzhou 3D Technological Complete Set Equipment Co., Ltd
* Managing Director, Weihai Yunchen Trading Co., Ltd

Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding
three years (2014-2016)
* NIL

Background and experience

Mr Raymond Lim started his career with the Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority
of Singapore (AVA) as a Fishery Officer in 1970, and was later seconded to
the Ministry of Defence to set up Singapore Food Industries Pte Ltd, which
caters rations to the Singapore Armed Forces. In 1981, he set up his own
companies Kai-Ocean Pte Ltd, Kaiyen Company Pte Ltd, and Sea King Pte
Ltd, specialising in the import and export of seafood, supplying to major
supermarkets in Singapore.

From 1988 to 1997 he was the Deputy President of Singapore Fish Merchant
General Association, and in 1992, the Honourable General Secretary of Asian
Fishery and Forestry Association of Singapore. He was elected President of
the Seafood Industries Association of Singapore (SIAS) in 1994 and held this
position until 1997.

Mr Raymond Lim set up Kunshan Ta Chuan Co., Ltd in Kunshan City, Jiangsu in
1999, manufacturing processed food products such as fish burgers and chicken
nuggets. He left Kunshan Ta Chuan in 2012.

Since 2012, Mr Raymond Lim was the consultant of Xiamen Chongma Import
& Export Co. Ltd. In 2015, Mr Raymond Lim is also the consultant of Weihai
Yunchen Trading Co., Ltd, which manufactures a wide range of food products
for both China and overseas markets.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
EEshhERERAR

BETUTEEERS
o HITERS - KA
o HEIERS - KR
MEHMB EHATEE
e &

BEriEERS

(PREM EHAREEN)
o EBE, BENMEZ#BARRELZERL
=)
o EBEZE, HBBZRRESAERLA
TE=EmBEETHEMBETLARZES
(20145 FE20165F)
e Tt

ERS5&N

WERETF1970FEFMMERRESEERF
s THRWAEE, HT1974F# B RHERD
FIEGERLFHMERmITIAABRA
Al, AHFHMIEEZIBAN TR 7E1981
%, el TESH A EKai-0ceanfh AH
BRAF], BlTAABRABTIUREERA
BIRAR, EEFEEMHEORBNE
HINIE & KB .

TE1988FE 19974 (8], MIBEFHMKES
BLEISK, HT199268FTMREK
Sial AL FmEXEK. F199456E
19974F 18], ftb24iE AR AFT MK TS

KasaK.

WRETF1999FEAFEIAHE R LA
BLUXNIERERAT, TEHEER
NERIEBHR, fhHEET2012F8EBFHEA
Ao

B2 RHAEEERFIH#HEOAR
PRAFIMIE] . F2015F ML TBERUE
ZREZERQAHE, FEZFHEZME
m it N2 E 585 H .



KEY MANAGEMENT
EEEMGR

MR JIANG RONGLIN, Age 47
ERMFKE, Fikd7

GENERAL MANAGER, Changzhou 3D Technological
Complete Set Equipment Co., Ltd

BRB, HNHZHRAREREERA
Date of appointment as General Manager: October 2013
ZEHEA: 20135108

Length of service: 3 years 2 months (as at 31 December 2016)
BRBIEHR: 3821 (BE2016512A31H)

Present directorship in other listed companies MR EHARES

* NIL e L

Present principal commitments By ERE

(other than directorships in other listed companies) (R EA FTEATE =)

- NIL . F

Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding three ~ EE=FIBEHME EHARZESR
years (2014-2016) (20144 Z20165F)

* NIL o X

Background and experience LR54%%

Mr Jiang started his career in a state-owned corporation as a section %5‘5%:’:1987¢7f_§%ﬁ%1¢, 19'51”\—
chief in 1987. In 1995, he decided to set up his own business and he %IES\"&Q 1295$’ ﬂﬂ'kltﬁ”l%f-_zﬂ"]i\ﬁjg‘
subsequently founded Changzhou Jinyang Paper Products Co., Ltd in BMATREEE, AT199TFRIEMNH R

4 AT, IEERT 42 =
1997. He assumed the role of Executive Director and General Manager ;ﬁiljﬁiﬁ_}ﬁ%’;gﬂngfg’“gﬁéqg;:e;

of the Company, growing and developing it until 2013, whereupon he left T, ENHEERUARAT ST, TN

in search of new challenges. He joined Changzhou 3D Technological T,\E'rﬁ?EjCE"J;ﬁ?E #B7E20134E10H ﬁif'f%"')‘l‘l

Complete Set Equipment Co., Ltd and was appointed General Manager. HEHBEARELEEERATREZIE, 50
$E{EHLER L.
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KEY MANAGEMENT

MR HENRY LIM HENG LIN, Age 67

WIE{ZRE, FiRe7

LEAD SUPERVISOR, Changzhou 3D Technological
Complete Set Equipment Co., Ltd

BRBRSEEE,

ST =B ARREREERAT

Bachelor’'s degree in Government & Public Administration from the Nanyang

University of Singapore
IR FEFAZHFEITHEF L F 0

Master of Business Administration degree in Corporate Finance from the University

of Dubuque of USA
EFH B RAF T EESME ML FL

Date of appointment as Supervisor: 1 January 2015

Z{EHHA: 201541 81H

Length of service: 2 years (as at 31 December 2016)

BRE1EHE: 24 (8ZE20165£12831H)

Present directorship in other listed companies
* NIL

Present principal commitments
(other than directorships in other listed companies)
» Senior Consultant of Jacob Business Amour Pte Ltd

Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding three
years (2014-2016)
* NIL

Background and experience

Mr Lim is currently a Senior Consultant with Jacob Business Armour
Pte Ltd in providing business continuity management training for SMEs
and assisting public listed companies in areas of corporate governance,
compliance and management issues.

From 1994 to 2010, Mr Lim was a founder and CEO of companies engaging
in property development including residential, hotels & resorts, golf course
and industrial park in Shanghai and cities in Jiangsu Province. He was also
active in fund raising, including IPOs and M&A investments.

Prior to that, he had founded and managed a garments factory for 18 years.
He also led a consulting firm helping SMEs in corporate restructuring. He
was also involved in trading of hedge funds in the region.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
EEHHERBIRAF

HEHM EFARES
e &t

BAEERE
(BREAE EHARERM)
o BEFRBABHIEELABRATZRMBIC)

TE=FRIEEHM EHATZES
(20144EF20165F)
e It

ERE52W

WL BRiiE AR BN EERAFRA
BIRBLRmIE], J9eh Bl _IJ_?#Q*""
BHE, FMBEHARAXELESR &
FUEN K E TR A IR o

F19945FE Z 2010 HA8], AL HHIBES
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EERA,. SRRZKGETIXERE. fththil
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MR ISAAC PEH LIN SIAH, Age 42

BHERIERE, Fik42

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
)n\j%lé\%.

Bachelor of Arts (Major in Economics and Statistics) from

the National University of Singapore

TR ETIAFXFZ L (EIEEFZSHTFE)

ACCA

FIFL U RTHIR
CPA(Australia)
FRFLLERTHIR GEAFIIE)
CPA (US)

FIFLAHELTHIR (E[E)

Date of employment: 9 December 2013

Z{EHHA: 20135E1289H

Length of service: 3 years (as at 31 December 2016)

FR&1EER: 34 (B FE2016512831H)

Present directorships in other listed companies
« NIL

Present principal commitments
(other than directorships in other listed companies)
* NIL

Directorships in other listed companies held over the preceding three
years (2014-2016)
« NIL

Background and experience

Mr Peh has 15 years’ broad based experience in various capacities in
accounting/audit, primarily for companies involved in manufacturing
activities such as semiconductor assembly and testing, printed circuit
board assembly, light consumer products and other various capacities in
accounting/ audit.

IEHM EHARES
e It

HaixER%
(pEM EHmAREEIN
e It

TE=EMIEEEM EHARZEE
(20144 F20164F)
e ¢

HR52%

BERERBISFTHREL SN ZE2H, H
PEEFSEAREMIA . ENHIERERE R,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

56 1R

Shanghai Turbo Enterprises Ltd (the “Company”) and its Management
is committed to maintain high standards of measures, practices and
transparency in the disclosure of material information in line with those
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the “Code”).

The Company has established various self-regulating and monitoring
mechanisms, to ensure that effective corporate governance is
practiced as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to
protect and enhance shareholder value and financial performance of
the Group.

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance processes
and structures that were in place throughout the financial year, with
specific reference made to the principles and guidelines of the Code
which forms part of the Continuing Obligations of the Listing Manual
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST").

The Board is pleased to confirm that for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 (“FY2016"), the Company has generally adhered to
the principles and guidelines as set out in the Code.

BOARD MATTERS
BOARD’S CONDUCT OF ITS AFFAIRS
Principle 1: Effective Board to lead and control the Company

1. sets the overall strategy of the Group, supervises and
works with the management to make objective decisions in
the interest of the Group including establishing goals and
priorities for the management, and reviews the management’s
performance by monitoring the achievement of these goals;

2. establishes policies on matters such as financial control,
financial performance and risk management procedures,
thereby taking responsibility for the overall corporate
governance of the Group;

3. sets objective performance criterion to evaluate the Board’s
performance and succession planning process;

4. reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal controls framework including
financial, operational, compliance and information technology
controls and establishing risk appetite and parameters to
safeguard shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets;

5. reviews and approves key operational and business initiatives,
major funding proposals and other corporate actions, significant
investment and divestment proposals, including determining
the Group’s operating and financial performance, the Group’s
annual budgets and capital expenditure, release of the Group’s
half-year and full-year financial results and other strategic
initiatives proposed by Management;

6. approves all Board appointments/re-appointments and
appointment of *Key Management Personnel, evaluates their
performance and reviews their remuneration packages;

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
EEshERERAR

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016412/531 H 1k
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 2¢iG A Bf

EBRNERERQT (TR “EAA” ) UK
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A ERIRE

7. identifies the key stakeholder groups and recognises that their
perceptions affect the Company’s reputation;

8. sets the Company’s values and standards (including ethical
standards), and ensures that obligations to shareholders and
other stakeholders are understood and met; and

9. considers sustainability issues (where applicable), e.g.
environmental and social factors, as part of its strategic
formulation.

t Key Management Personnel: the CEO and other persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established several Board Committees namely, Audit Committee
(“AC"), Nominating Committee (“NC”) and Remuneration Committee
(“RC”). These Board Committees function within clearly defined terms
of reference, which are reviewed on a regular basis. The terms of
reference of the respective committees have incorporated the recent
changes under the Code. All Board Committees are chaired by an
Independent Director and a majority of the members are independent
Directors.

The Board and its committees met regularly and as warranted
by particular circumstances to discharge their duties. An annual
schedule of Board and Board Committee meeting dates are set by the
Directors in advance. Ad-hoc meetings are convened when required
to address any significant issues that may arise in-between the
scheduled meetings. Where physical meetings are not possible, timely
communication with members of the Board and Board Committees
can be achieved through electronic means and circulation of written
resolutions for approval by the Board or relevant Board Committees.
The Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”) provide that the
Directors may conduct meetings by means of telephone or video
conference or other methods of simultaneous communication.

To enable members of the Board and its committees to prepare for
the meetings, agendas were circulated in advance. Members of the
management are invited to attend the meetings to present information
and/or render clarification when required. Directors are welcome
to request for further explanation, briefings or discussions on any
aspect of the Group’s operations or business from the management.
When required, Board members meet to exchange views outside the
formal environment of Board meetings. The frequency of meetings
and attendance of each director at every board and Board Committee
meeting are disclosed in this Report.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016412/531 H 1k
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 2$iG A Bf
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The attendance of the directors at Board meetings and Board
Committee meetings as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:-

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 &; 2016412531 H 1L
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 2¢iG A Bf

EET20165F 12N HNERIWURERERS
SWHHFEERNT:

Audit Nominating Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
Board “AC") “NC”) (“RC")
BER HIHERS REBERR FMERS
Number of meetings BRFSBURE 6 4 2 2
Name of directors BENA
Executive Director: HITES:
Liu Ming XI|BA 6 - 2 _
Non-Executive IEIT
Independent Directors: WMITEE.
WHuang Wooi Teik O HE 3 1 1 1
@Jack Chia Seng Hee DT 6 4 2 2
@Tan Wee Peng Kelvin WRERIHET 2 2 1 -
®Raymond Lim Sian Heong © FRERH - - - -
Non-Executive JEBAT
Non-Independent Director: JEIhIEE:
MAloysius Wee Meng Seng MERARY 2 - - -
®Dr Daniel Liu Danjun OXFFERL 3 3 1 1

(1)  Huang Wooi Teik and Aloysius Wee Meng Seng retired as Directors on 30
April 2016

2) Jack Chia Seng Hee was appointed as Lead Independent Director on 1 May
2016

(3) Dr Daniel Liu Danjun was appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and
Remuneration Committee on 1 May 2016

(4) Tan Wee Peng Kelvin was appointed as Non-Executive Independent
Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nominating
Committee and Remuneration Committee on 16 July 2016

(5) Raymond Lim Sian Heong was appointed as Non-Executive Independent
Director and a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
on 16 November 2016

The Board recognises that while these Board Committees have
the delegated power to make decisions, execute actions or make
recommendations in their specific areas respectively, and will report
back to the Board with their decisions and/or recommendations, the
ultimate responsibility for the decisions and actions rests with the
Board.

The Company has adopted internal guidelines governing matters that
require the Board’s approval. Matters which are specifically reserved
to the Board for decision include those involving a conflict of interest
for a substantial shareholder or a director, material acquisitions,
disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring and share
issuances, dividends and other returns to shareholders and matters
which require Board approval as specified under the Company’s
interested person transaction policy.
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Newly appointed directors will, if necessary, be given briefings by the
management on the business activities of the Group, governance
policies, policies on disclosure of interests in securities, the rules
relating to disclosure of any conflict of interest in a transaction
involving the Company, prohibitions in dealing in the Company’s
securities and restrictions on disclosure of price sensitive information.

To keep pace with a fast-changing regulatory environment, the
Company and the Board works closely with the Company Secretary to
provide its directors with regular updates on the latest governance and
listing policies. All directors were also updated regularly concerning
any changes in company policies.

A formal letter of appointment is furnished to every newly-appointed
director upon his or her appointment explaining, among other matters,
their roles, obligations, duties and responsibilities as members of the
Board.

Directors and the management are encouraged to attend courses to
keep abreast of changes in the law and governance matters that may
affect the Company. The Company has a budget for them to receive
further relevant training of their choice in connection with their duties.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE

Principle 2: Strong and independent element on the Board

Presently, the Board comprises one Executive Director, one Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director and three Non-Executive

Independent Directors.

Non-Executive Chairman
& Lead Independent Director

Mr Huang Wooi Teik
(Retired on 30 April 2016)

Executive Director & CEO
Mr Liu Ming
Lead Independent Director

Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee
(Appointed as Lead Independent Director on 1 May 2016)

Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors

Mr Aloysius Wee Meng Seng
(Retired on 30 April 2016)

Dr Daniel Liu Danjun
(Appointed on 1 May 2016)

Non-Executive Independent Directors

Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin
(Appointed on 16 July 2016)

Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong
(Appointed on 16 November 2016)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 &;ZE2016£124531 H 1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 2$iG A Bf
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There is presently an executive director, a non-executive non-
independent and three non-executive independent directors. Half of
the board is independent directors with the lead independent director,
hence there is a strong independent element on the Board.

Individual directors’ profiles are shown in the “Board of Directors”
section of this Annual Report as set on pages 12 to 16.

The NC conducts its annual review on the composition and size of the
Board. The NC considers the current Board composition and size to
be appropriate to facilitate effective decision making for the existing
needs and demands of the Group’s businesses. The NC, through the
approval of the board, has also put in place the appointment of an
independent director, Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong, on 20 July 2015,
at the operating subsidiary, Changzhou 3D Technological Complete
Set Equipment Co, Ltd (“Changzhou 3D”). The board of the operating
subsidiary meets quarterly to discuss the operational issues in depth,
before surfacing the issues to the Company.

The NC and the Board, in its deliberation as to the independence of a
director, takes into account examples of relationships as set out in the
Code.

The Board possesses the relevant core competencies in areas
such as accounting and finance, strategic planning, business and
management experience. In particular, the Executive Director
possesses good industry knowledge while the Non-Executive
Directors, who are mostly professionals and experts in their own
fields, are able to take a broader view of the Group’s activities,
contribute their valuable experiences and provide independent and
objective judgement during Board deliberations or when challenging
Management’s proposals or decisions constructively on business
activities and transactions involving conflicts of interest and other
complexities. The Non-Executive Directors also contribute to
the Board process by monitoring and reviewing Management's
performance against goals and objectives. Their views and opinions
provide alternate perspectives to the Group’s business.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors helped develop both
the Group’s short-term and long-term business strategies, corporate
governance compliance and played an important role in tightening
the internal control processes risk and compliance monitoring. They
also communicated among themselves without the presence of
management as and when the need arises. The Company also
benefited from the management’'s ready access to its Directors for
guidance and exchange of views both within and outside the formal
Board or committees meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEQ”)
Principle 3: Clear division of responsibilities at the top of the Company

The position of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)
are separate to ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased
accountability and greater capacity of the Board for independent
decision-making.
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Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee, being the Lead Independent Director (“LID”)
appointed on 1 May 2016, leads the Board meetings and sets the
Board meeting agenda in consultation with the Company Secretary
and ensures that Board members are provided with complete,
adequate and timely information. The LID is also responsible for
ensuring that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda
items, particularly for strategic issues, and promoting high standards
of corporate governance. Besides ensuring effective communication
with shareholders, the LID also acts as facilitator to the Non-Executive
Directors for them to effectively contribute to the Group.

The LID is also the principal liaison to address shareholders’
concerns, for which direct contact through normal channels of the
CEO or Financial Controller has failed to resolve or for which such
contact is inappropriate. He also facilitates periodic meetings with the
other Independent Directors on board matters, when necessary and
provides his feedback to the CEO after such meetings.

The other specific roles as LID are as follows:

a) acts as liaison between the Non-Executive Directors and the
CEO and the Executive Directors to provide non-executive
perspectives; and

b) assists the Board and Company officers in better ensuring
compliance with and implementation of corporate governance.

Mr Liu Ming, the Executive Director and CEO, is responsible for the
day-to-day running of the Group and the execution of the strategic
plans set out by the Board. He ensures that the Board is kept updated
and informed of the Group’s business.

During the year, the Company’'s Non-Executive directors have
communicated between themselves, without the presence of the
management as and when the need arises.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Principle 4: Formal and transparent process for appointment and re-
appointment of directors to the Board

Presently, the NC comprises 4 members, 2 of whom (including the
Chairman) are independent directors:-

Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee (Chairman)
Mr Liu Ming (Member)
Dr Daniel Liu Danjun (Member)
Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin (Member)

The primary function of the NC is to determine the criteria for
identifying candidates and to review nominations for the appointment
of directors to the Board, to consider how the Board's performance
may be evaluated, and to propose objective performance criteria for
the Board’s approval. Its duties and functions are outlined as follows:-

1. to make recommendations to the Board on all Board
appointments and re-nomination having regard to the director’s
contribution and performance (e.g. attendance, preparedness,
participation, candour, and any other salient factors);
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2. to ensure that all directors would be required to submit
themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular
intervals and at least once in every three years;

3. to determine annually whether a director is independent, in
accordance with the independence guidelines contained in the
Code;

4. to review whether a director is able to and has adequately

carried out his duties as a director of the Company in
particular where the director concerned has multiple Board
representations; and

5. to consider how the Board’s performance may be evaluated
and to propose objective performance criteria.

The NC reviews annually the independence of each Director based
on the definition and criteria set out in the Code for independence.
Each Non-Executive Director is required to complete a Confirmation of
Independence form drawn up based on the Principle 2 of the Code for
the NC'’s review and recommendation to the Board.

Taking into consideration the foregoing, the NC is of the view that Mr
Jack Chia Seng Hee, Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin and Mr Raymond Lim
Sian Heong are deemed to be independent. Each of these Directors
has also confirmed their independence. Dr Daniel Liu Danjun is not
independent by virtue of him representing the interests of his 27.18%
shareholders (as defined under the Code) of the Company.

The NC also noted that as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Independent Directors has served on the Board beyond 9 years
from the date of his first appointment. Each of these directors have
abstained from any discussion and voting on the matter at the NC and
Board meetings respectively.

The Board had concurred with the NC’s assessment.

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to the NC, has used
its best efforts to ensure that directors appointed to the Board possess
the relevant background, experience and knowledge in business,
legal, finance and management skill critical to the Group’s business to
enable the Board to make sound and well considered decisions.

The Company’s Articles provide for the retirement and re-election of
Directors at every Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

Article 86(1) & (2) of the Company’s Articles of Association require
that every director on the Board shall retire at least once every
three (3) years. A retiring Director shall be eligible to offer himself
for re-election. Pursuant to Article 85(6) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any new director appointed during the year shall retire
at the next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. The NC is responsible for the nomination of retiring Directors
for re-election.
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In reviewing the nomination of the retiring directors, the NC
considered the composition and progressive renewal of the Board,
and the competency, performance and contribution of each of
the retiring directors, having regard not only to their attendance,
preparedness and participation at Board and Board Committee
meetings but also the time and effort devoted to the Group’s business
and affairs, especially their operational and technical contributions.
Where appropriate, the NC will also consider the Director’s
independence.

The Board has accepted the NC’s recommendation on the nomination
of Mr Liu Ming, who is retiring pursuant to Article 86(1), to be put
forward for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Mr Liu Ming will, upon
re-election as a director of the Company, remain as a member of the
NC and will be considered non-independent.

The Board has also accepted the NC’s recommendations on the
nominations of Dr Daniel Liu Danjun, Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin and Mr
Raymond Lim Sian Heong, who are retiring pursuant to Article 85(6),
to be put forward for re-elections at the forthcoming AGM.

Dr Daniel Liu Danjun will, upon re-election as a director of the
Company, remain as a member of the AC, NC and RC and will be
considered non-independent. Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin will, upon re-
election as a director of the Company, remain as Chairman of the AC
and a member of the NC and RC and will be considered independent.
Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong will, upon re-election as a director of
the Company, remain as a member of the AC and RC and will be
considered independent.

Mr Liu Ming, Dr Daniel Liu Danjun, Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin and
Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong have abstained from deliberation and
voting in respect of their own re-elections at the respective NC and
Board meetings.

Where a Director has multiple Board representations, the NC will
determine if the Director has been able to devote sufficient time and
attention to the Company’s affairs and if he has been adequately
carrying out his duties as a Director. The recommendation of the
NC is then made to the Board accordingly. The Board will review
this recommendation. The NC is of the view that the number of
directorships a Director can hold and his principal commitments
should not be prescriptive as the time commitment for each board
membership will vary. The NC will review the number of listed
company board representations which each Director holds on an
annual basis or from time to time when the need arises. In this
respect, the NC believes that it would not be necessary to prescribe a
maximum number of listed company board representations a Director
may hold. The Board affirms and supports this view.

Currently, no alternate Directors have been appointed in respect of
any of the Directors.

During the year, the NC had reviewed the directorships and principal
commitments disclosed by each Director and was of the view that the
existing directorships and principal commitments of the respective
Directors have not affected their abilities to discharge their duties. The
Board concurred with the NC.
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None of the Directors are related and do not have any relationship
with the Company or its related companies or its officers who
could interfere or to be reasonably perceived to interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements.

BOARD PERFORMANCE

Principle 5: Formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the
Board and contributions by each director.

The NC is responsible for assessing the Board as a whole and also
each individual director’s contribution.

To ensure confidentiality, the evaluation forms completed by directors
were submitted to the Company Secretary for collation and the
consolidated responses were presented to the NC for review and
discussion. The NC has reported to the Board on its review of the
Board's performance for the year.

The NC, in conducting the appraisal process to assess the
performance and effectiveness of the board as a whole, focuses on
a set of performance criteria which includes the evaluation of the
size and composition of the Board, the board’s access to information,
board processes and accountability, board performance in relation to
discharging its principal responsibilities, and the directors’ standards
of conduct. The Board has approved and adopted a revised set
of performance criteria in view of the Code in 2015, which fosters
proactive board development, raises the performance bar relative to
corporate best practices and ensures relevance in today's dynamic
business environment.

The questionnaires in the board performance evaluation were
expanded to include remuneration matters, risk management
and internal controls and shareholders’ right and responsibilities,
which covers communications with shareholders and conduct at
shareholders’ meetings.

The NC and the Board had approved and adopted a set of new
performance criteria for the assessment of each individual director.

The Board has taken the view that the financial indicators, as
set out in the Code as a guide for the evaluation of the board and
its directors, may not be appropriate as these are more of a
measurement of management’s performance and therefore less
applicable to directors.

The NC has conducted a board performance evaluation exercise
to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole for FY2016
and is satisfied that sufficient time and attention has been given by
the directors to the affairs of the Group. The overall ratings have
improved. The NC is generally satisfied with the results of the Board
performance for FY2016, which indicated areas of strengths and those
that could be improved further. No significant problems were identified.
The NC had discussed the results with Board members who agreed
to work on those areas that could be improved further. The NC would
continue to evaluate the process for such review and its effectiveness
from time to time.

The NC had put in place a formal process for short listing, evaluating
and nominating candidates for appointment as new Directors.
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The NC, in consultation with Management and the Board, determines
the qualifications and expertise required or expected of a new
board member taking into account the current board size, structure,
composition and progressive renewal of the board. Prospective
candidates are sourced through recommendations from board
members, business associates, advisors, professional bodies and
other industry players. These candidates are reviewed by the NC.
The criteria for assessing the suitability of any nominee or candidate
are determined by the NC.

The NC, in evaluating the suitability of the nominee or candidate, will
take into account his qualifications, business and related experience
and ability to contribute effectively to the board. The NC will also
determine if the nominee or candidate would be able to commit time
to his appointment having regard to his other board appointments and
principal commitments, and if he is independent.

The evaluation process will also involve an interview or meeting
with the nominee or candidate. Appropriate background checks and
confidential searches will also be made. Recommendations of the NC
are then put to the board for consideration.

The Company may appoint professional search firms and recruitment
consultants to assist in the selection and evaluation process if the
appointment involves specific skill sets or industry specialisation..

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Principle 6: Board members to have complete, adequate and timely
information

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management of the Company, the Company Secretary, the Internal
Auditors (as defined below) and the External Auditors (as defined
below) at all times. Directors also have unrestricted access to
the Company’s records and information, all Board and Board’s
committees’ minutes, and have been receiving management accounts
so as to enable them to carry out their duties.

In addition to the periodic business forecasts submitted to the
Board for approval, the Board has been provided with management
reports, Board papers and related materials informing the directors
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Management
also keeps the Board apprised of material variances between the
actual results, and the corresponding period of the previous year,
with appropriate explanation on such variances. Further, additional
information is circulated to the Board on a regular basis as and when
there is material development in the Group’s business operations.

The Company Secretary attends all Board and Board Committee
meetings and administers, attends and prepares minutes of Board
and Board Committee meetings, and assists the Chairman in ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and reviewed in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, so that the Board functions
effectively and the relevant rules and regulations applicable to the
Company are complied with. The Company Secretary’s role is to
advise the Board on all governance matters, ensuring that legal and
regulatory requirements as well as board policies and procedures are
complied with.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016412/531 H 1k
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The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary and the
professional corporate secretarial firm are subject to the approval of
the Board.

Should directors require professional advice, whether as a group
or individually, the Company shall upon the direction of the Board,
appoint a professional advisor selected by the Group or the individual,
approved by the Chairman, to render the service. The costs of such
service shall be borne by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR DEVELOPING REMUNERATION POLICIES

Principle 7: Formal and transparent procedure for fixing remuneration
packages of directors and key management executives

Presently, the RC comprises 4 members, 3 of whom (including the
Chairman) are Independent Directors:-

Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee (Chairman)
Dr Daniel Liu Danjun (Member)
Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin (Member)
Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong (Member)

The RC is responsible for ensuring a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration, and for
fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors and senior
management. The RC'’s review will cover all aspects of remuneration
including, but not limited to, directors’ fees, salaries, allowances,
bonus, share options and benefits in kind and specific remuneration
packages for each director. In structuring a compensation framework
for executive directors and key executives, the RC seeks to link a
proportion of executive compensation to the Group’s performance.
The RC’s recommendation are made in consultation with the
Chairman of the Board and submitted for endorsement by the entire
Board. No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

No remuneration consultants were engaged in FY2016.

LEVEL AND MIX OF REMUNERATION

Principle 8: The level of remuneration for directors should be aligned
with the long-term interest and risk policies

Executive Directors do not receive directors’ fees. The Executive
Director and key senior management remuneration packages are
based on service contracts. The reviews of the compensation are
carried out by the RC to ensure that the remuneration of the Executive
Director and key management personnel commensurate with their
performance and that of the Company, giving due regard to the
financial and commercial health and business needs of the Group.

The performance of the CEO (together with other key management
personnel) is reviewed periodically by the RC and the Board. In
structuring the compensation framework, the RC also takes into
account the risk management policies of the Group. This is designed
to align remuneration with the interests of shareholders and link
rewards to corporate and individual performance so as to promote the
long-term sustainability of the Company.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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The RC sets and reviews remuneration linked to the key performance
indexes for the CEO for every financial year and assesses his
performance. Key performance indices are not only tied to corporate
performance but also linked with certain risk control measurements.
For FY2016, the CEO has not met the key performance indices set by
the RC.

The Company does not have a share option scheme or performance
share plan. The RC is considering the viability of such schemes/plans
and is looking into other long-term incentive schemes to supplement
the Group’s current compensation framework. The RC intends to
extend the same to other 'Key Management Personnel.

Non-Executive Directors are paid yearly Directors’ fees of an agreed
amount based on their contributions, taking into account factors such
as effort, time spent, responsibilities of the directors and the need
to pay competitive fees to attract, motivate and retain the directors.
Directors’ fees are recommended by the Board for approval at the
Company’s AGM.

The Company uses contractual provisions to allow the Company to
reclaim incentive components of remuneration from its Executive
Director, but not its key management person in China, in exceptional
circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or of misconduct
resulting in financial loss to the Company. The RC has obtained legal
advice on the unenforceability of such provisions on key management
personnel in the People’s Republic of China.

DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION

Principle 9: Clear disclosure of remuneration policy, level and mix of
remuneration, and the procedure for setting the remuneration

An appropriate and attractive level of remuneration has been set
to attract, retain and motivate directors and staff. The remuneration
package is made up of both fixed and variable components. The
variable component is determined based on the performance of the
individual employee as well as the Group’s performance. Annual
increments and adjustments to remuneration are reviewed and
approved taking into account the results of the annual review made
by the executive directors and the various heads of department. All
non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees that are subject to
shareholders’ approval at the AGMs.

The RC has recommended to the Board the payment of directors’
fees of RMB1,800,000 for FY2017 for the Non-Executive Directors, an
increase of RMB380,000 from the Directors’ fees for FY2016, which
amounted to RMB1,420,000. This is in view of the an additional non-
executive independent director appointed.

The Board concurred with the RC’s recommendation. The Non-
Executive Directors have abstained from deliberation and voting in
respect of their own fees at the respective RC (where applicable) and
Board meetings. Accordingly, shareholders’ approval will be sought at
the forthcoming AGM.
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Remuneration for the directors for the financial year ended FY2016 is 20161 BIERIE = HEIN T

as follows:
Other Directors
Salary Bonus Remuneration Fees Total
e 4 FAb EERH 2it
Remuneration Bands & i AT
Salary ®a % % % % %
Executive Director BiTER
25T E
S$250,000 and 500,000 _
¥ 503
Liu Ming XI|EF 94.2 - - 5.8 100
Non-Executive Directors JERTER
Below S$250,000 25 FHTUAT
Huang Wooi Teik EHiHE - - - 100 100
Jack Chia Seng Hee AT - - - 100 100
Aloysius Wee Meng Seng EHARL - - - 100 100
Dr Daniel Liu Danjun X EFL - - - 100 100
Tan Wee Peng Kelvin FRiE - - - 100 100
Raymond Lim Sian Heong  #AEL# - - - 100 100

For confidentiality reasons, the Company is not disclosing the HFEERZEEE, KABEAETTEHRNT
remuneration of each individual Director to the nearest thousand £ANBENBNEZEHEH. B2, FEDLL25
dollars. However, disclosure had been provided in bands of PHMAERRTIRE, HBISEEE., &
S$250,000 instead, with a breakdown in percentage of the 2. BEED. S S¥EF, K/
remuneration earned through fees, salary, fixed component, variable — HfbERMRIEE, 5 HEHFRAELGI4E .
component, benefits in kind, and/or other long term incentives.

Remuneration for the top six !Key Management Personnel (who are 2016 BESNK ETEZSE AR (JEEER

not a director or CEO) for FY2016 is as follows: HEHITE) WT:
Other
Salary Bonus Remuneration Total
e 4 HtbH 2it
% % % %
Below S$250,000 BRFTTAT
Jiang Ronglin ELIV 80.9 19.1 - 100
Henry Lim 7N = - - 100 100
Isaac Peh Lin Siah SEE 100 - - 100
Li Aidong FTER 84.7 15.3 - 100
Huang Yijiang #H—T 85.2 14.8 - 100
Jia Qin ES 86.3 13.7 - 100

The aggregate of the total remuneration paid to the top six Key {TAARKTEERAR JEEZHEFHITE)
Management Personnel (who are not directors or the CEOQ) is  HIFRBNEEi 15676188 T ART.
RMB1,566,188.

There were no termination, retirement and post-employment benefits EERAEAEFHIITEXTEEEERRAT
granted to Directors, the Chairman and Group CEO or the top Key 2016 EIEHFLIHKIRLK L. BIARZBEREF.
Management Personnel in FY2016.

32 SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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For confidentiality reasons and given the competitive hiring pressures
and disadvantages that this might bring, the Company is not
disclosing the aggregate total remuneration and each individual’s
remuneration. However, disclosure had been provided in bands
of S$250,000, with a breakdown in percentage of the remuneration
earned through salary, fixed component, variable component, benefits
in kind, and/or other long term incentives.

The remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the Key
Management Personnel of the Company and its subsidiaries comprise
base salaries and bonuses.

There are no immediate family members of directors or CEO in
employment with the Group whose remuneration exceeds S$50,000
during FY2016.

The Company does not have any share scheme.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Principle 10: The Board should present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the performance, position and
prospects

The Board is accountable to shareholders. The Board updates
shareholders on the operations and financial position of the Group
through quarterly, half yearly and full year results announcements as
well as timely announcements of other matters as prescribed by the
relevant rules and regulations. The management is accountable to the
Board by providing the Board with the necessary financial information
for the discharge of its duties.

During the year, the Board has reviewed reports from the
management to ensure compliance with all the Group’s policies,
operational practices and procedures and relevant legislative and
regulatory requirements.

The management updates the Board regularly on the Group’s
business activities and financial performance through operations
reports. Such reports compare the Group’s actual performance against
results of the previous year and, where appropriate, against forecast.
They also highlight key business indicators and major issues that are
relevant to the Group’s performance from time to time in order for the
Board to make balanced and informed assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Principle 11: The Board is responsible for risk governance and internal
controls

As the Company does not have a risk management committee, the
Board, the AC and the management assume the responsibility of
the risk management function. The management reviews regularly
the Group’s business and operational activities to identify areas of
significant risks, as well as appropriate measures to control and
mitigate these risks. The management reviews all significant policies
and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the Board and
the AC.
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The Board is cognizant of its responsibility for maintaining a
sound system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets and business. The
Group’s internal auditors, BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public
Accountants LLP (“Internal Auditors”), carry out a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls annually as
set out in their scope laid out in their audit plan. All material non-
compliance and internal control weaknesses noted during their audit
are reported to the AC.

Major control weaknesses on financial reporting, if any, are highlighted
by the external auditors in the course of their audit.

The AC had engaged HLS Risk Advisory Services to conduct an
Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) report on the Company in 2013.
The Company had adopted many of the recommendations highlighted
in the report and a structure is now in place based on the report.

The Board has received written assurance from the CEO and the
Financial Controller (“FC”) that:

(@ The financial records of the Group have been properly
maintained and financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 give a true and fair view of the
Group’s operations and finances; and

(b) The system of risk management and internal controls in place
within the Group is adequate and effective in addressing the
material risks in the Group in its current business environment
including material financial, operational, compliance and
information technology risks.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 1207(10) OF THE SGX-ST LISTING
MANUAL

Based on the Group’s framework of internal control policies and
procedures established and maintained by the Group, work done by
the Supervisory committee and reviews performed by the external
auditors and Internal Auditors in FY2016 and the Management
Assurance Letter signed by the CEO and the FC, the Board, with the
concurrence of the AC, is of the view that the internal control systems
of the Group, addressing the financial, operational, compliance and
information technology risks are adequate as at 31 December 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Principle 12: Establishment of Audit Committee with written terms of
reference

Presently, the Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises 4 members, 3 of
whom (including the Chairman) are Independent Directors are:-

Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin (Chairman)
Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee (Member)
Dr Daniel Liu Danjun (Member)
Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong (Member)

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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The AC assists the Board to maintain a high standard of Corporate
Governance, particularly by providing an independent review of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting, management of financial and
control risks, and monitoring of the internal control systems.

The members of AC, collectively, have expertise or experience
in financial management and are qualified to discharge the AC'’s
responsibilities.

The functions of the AC are as follows:

1. assists our Board in discharging its statutory responsibilities on
financial and accounting matters;

2. reviews the financial and operating results and accounting
policies of the Group;

3. reviews significant financial reporting issues and judgments
relating to financial statements for each interim and annual
results announcement before submission to the Board for
approval;

4, reviews and reports to the Board annually on the adequacy
of the Company’s internal controls (financial, operational,
compliance and information technology) and risk management
policies and systems established by the management;

5. reviews the audit plans and reports of the external auditors
and consider the effectiveness of the actions taken by the
management on the auditors’ recommendations;

6. appraises and reports to our Board on the audits undertaken
by the external auditors, the adequacy of the disclosure of
information, and the appropriateness and quality of the system
of management and internal controls;

7. reviews the independence of external auditors annually, and
considers the appointment or re-appointment of external
auditors and matters relating to the resignation or removal of
the external auditors, and approves the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors;

8. reviews interested person transactions, as defined in the
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST;

9. reviews the remuneration of employees who are related to the
Company'’s directors or substantial shareholders; and

10. reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function.

The AC has adequate resources to enable it to discharge its
responsibilities properly. The AC has explicit authority to investigate
any matter within its terms of reference.

The AC has full access to the Internal Auditors and the Company’s
external auditors, Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP, Singapore
(“External Auditors”). No former partner or director of the External
Auditors is a member of the AC. The AC also has the discretion to
invite any director or key executive to attend its meetings. It meets
with the External Auditors and Internal Auditors without the presence
of the management at least once a year.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016412/531 H 1k
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The AC has reviewed the non-audit services performed by the
External Auditors and noted that there was no non-audit service
performed in FY2016. The audit service fees for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB 946,271.

Pursuant to Rule 716 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the AC and the
Board are satisfied that the appointment of Changzhou Xinhuarui
CPAs, a firm of Certified Public Accountants, registered in the PRC
to audit the statutory financial statements of Changzhou 3D would
not compromise the standard and effectiveness of the audit of the
Company.

The AC has recommended to the Board of Directors that Crowe
Horwath First Trust LLP, Singapore, be nominated for reappointment
as external auditors at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The
Board concurred with the AC’s recommendation.

The Company has put in place a whistle-blowing framework, endorsed
by the AC where employees of the Company may, in confidence,
raise concerns about possible corporate improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters and to ensure that arrangements
are in place for the independent investigations of such matters and
for appropriate follow up actions. Any employee can speak directly
to: (1) the Supervisory Committee members Ms Huang Xia or Ms
Pan Haiya, who are full time in the plant, and who will in turn report to
Mr Henry Lim, Lead Supervisor; or (2) Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong,
Director at Changzhou 3D who is based in China. Alternatively, they
can write to changzhou3d@163.com anonymously, and this email
is only accessible by Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin, AC Chairman. The
details of the whistle-blowing policies and arrangements have been
made available to all employees.

There was no whistle-blowing letter received in FY2016.

In addition to the activities undertaken to fulfil its responsibilities,
the AC is kept abreast by the management and external auditors on
changes to accounting standards, stock exchange rules and other
codes and regulations which could have an impact on the Group’s
business and financial statements.

INTERNAL AUDIT
Principle 13: Setting up an independent internal audit function

As mentioned earlier, the Company had appointed BDO China Shu
Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP to undertake the function of
internal audit. The Internal Auditors have unrestricted access to all the
Company’s documents, records, properties and personnel, including
access to the AC.

Reports of the Internal Auditors’ work covering various cycles or
aspects of the accounting functions and internal control systems and
procedures had been received and corrective actions taken in the
course of the year. The Internal Auditors are continuing to look at
other cycles or aspects and their reports have been received and their
recommendations accepted.
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The AC reviews the adequacy of the internal audit function to ensure
that internal audits are conducted effectively and that management
provides the necessary co-operation to enable the Internal Auditors
to perform their function. The AC also reviews the Internal Auditors’
reports and remedial actions implemented by management to address
any internal control inadequacies identified.

SUPERVISORY TEAM

The AC, through the approval of the board, has appointed Mr Henry
Lim on 1 January 2015, as Lead Supervisor of Changzhou 3D.

The Supervisory Team is a requirement of Chinese companies to
provide periodic checks on internal controls and processes, as well as
serving as an extension of the internal and external audit.

Mr Lim made 6 visits to the operating subsidiary in 2016 to carry out
the work specified by the AC. He is supported by two full time staff.
The reports of the Supervisory Team are extended to the External
Auditors.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Principle 14: Fair and equitable treatment of shareholders

The Company believes in timely, fair and adequate disclosure of
relevant information to shareholders and investors so that they will
be apprised of developments that may have a material impact on
the Company’s securities. The Company does not practise selective
disclosure. All information of the Company is published through the
SGXNet.

The Company allows The Central Depository (Pte) Limited or other
corporations which provide nominee or custodial services to appoint
more than two proxies to attend general meetings of the Company so
that shareholders will have the opportunity to participate effectively in
and vote at general meetings.

Principle 15: Effective and fair communication with shareholders

In line with the continuous disclosure obligations under the listing
rules of the SGX-ST, the Board informs shareholders promptly of all
major developments that may have a material impact on the Group.
The Board embraces openness and transparency in the conduct of
the Company’s affairs, whilst safeguarding its commercial interests.
Material information on the Group is released to the public through the
Company’s announcements via the SGXNET.

General meetings have been and still are the principal forum for
dialogue with shareholders. At these meetings, shareholders are
able to engage the Board and the management on the Group’s
business activities, financial performance and other business- related
matters. The Company could also gather views or input and address
shareholders’ concerns at general meetings. The Company welcomes
shareholders to visit the factory of operating subsidiary located in
Changzhou, to gain a better understanding of its operations.
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The Company does not have a concrete dividend policy at present.
The Company has however consistently declared dividends in
each calendar year since 2009. The form, frequency and amount
of dividends declared each year will take into consideration the
Group’s profit growth, cash position, positive cash flow generated
from operations, projected capital requirements for business growth
and other macroeconomic and internal factors as the Board may
deem appropriate. The Company endeavours to pay dividends and
where dividends are not paid, the Company will disclose its reason(s)
accordingly.

The Board has recommended the payment of a first and final dividend
of RMBO0.125 per ordinary share (tax not applicable) for FY2016 and
would table its recommendation to shareholders for approval at the
forthcoming AGM.

Principle 16: Shareholders’ participation at general meetings

All shareholders receive the annual report and notice of the AGM.
At the AGM, shareholders are given the opportunity to voice their
views and ask directors or the management questions regarding the
Company'’s affairs. If the Company convenes an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”), the same is practised save for the shareholders
receiving a circular or letter explaining the purpose of the EGM and
notice of EGM.

The Chairmen of the AC, RC and NC will normally be present at AGM
to answer any questions relating to the work of these Committees.
The external auditors are also present at the AGM to answer
guestions from shareholders.

The Company’s Articles of Association allows a member of the
Company to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote in
place of the member. A member or the Company entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM and who holds two or more shares is entitled to
appoint one (1) or two (2) proxies to attend and vote.

The Board notes that there should be separate resolutions at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue and supports the
Code’s principle regarding “bundling” of resolutions.

The minutes of general meetings, which include substantial comments
or queries from shareholders and responses from the Board are
available to shareholders upon written request.

The Board noted that the SGX-ST had introduced new listing rules
to promote greater transparency in general meetings and support
listed companies in enhancing their shareholders’ engagement. The
Company would be required to conduct its voting at general meetings
by poll with effect from 1 August 2015 where shareholders are
accorded rights proportionate to the shareholding and all votes are
counted and the voting results of the general meetings are released
via SGXNet on the same day. The Board believes that the new rule
will enhance transparency of the voting process and encourage
greater shareholder participation. Accordingly, the Company would be
conducting its voting at the upcoming AGM by poll.
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DEALING IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted its own internal compliance code
pursuant to the best practices on dealings in securities and these
are applicable to all its officers in relation to their dealings in the
Company’s securities. Its officers are advised not to deal in the
Company’s shares during the period commencing two weeks before
the announcement of the Company’s quarterly results and one month
before the announcement of the Company’s full year results, or if
they are in possession of unpublished price- sensitive information of
the Company. In addition, directors and officers should not deal in the
Company’s securities on short-term considerations and are expected
to observe insider trading laws at all times even when dealing in
securities within the permitted trading period.

The Group has complied with Listing Rule 1207(19) of the Listing
Manual.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts of the Company or its subsidiaries
involving the interests of the Executive Directors, each director or
controlling shareholders, either still subsisting at the end of the
financial year or entered into since the end of the previous financial
year.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Group has established procedures to ensure that all transactions
with interested persons are reported in a timely manner to the AC,
and that the transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis and
are not prejudicial to the interests of the shareholders. All interested
person transactions are subject to review by the AC to ensure
compliance with the established procedures.

Pursuant to Rule 907 of the Listing Manual of SGX-ST, the aggregate
value of all interested person transactions during the financial
year under review (excluding transactions less than S$100,000 and
transactions conducted under shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule
920 of the Listing Manual) are as follows:-
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The directors present their statement to the members together with
the audited financial statements of Shanghai Turbo Enterprises Ltd.
(the “Company”) and subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 and the statement of financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2016.

In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the statement of financial position of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on
pages 50 to 104 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2016 and of the financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year then
ended; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due.

The board of directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised
these financial statements for issue.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement
are as follows:

Mr Liu Ming

Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee

Dr Daniel Liu Danjun

Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin

Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures
None of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year had

any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related
corporations, except as follows:
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The director’s interests in the ordinary shares of the Company as at
21 January 2017 were the same as those as at 31 December 2016.
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Arrangements to enable directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the
Company a party to any arrangement whose object was to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Share options

During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of
the Company or any subsidiaries were granted and no shares were
issued by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares
of the Company or any subsidiaries. There were no unissued shares
of the Company or any subsidiaries under option at the end of the
financial year.

Audit committee

The members of the Audit Committee at the end of the financial year
are as follows:

Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin (Chairman) (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr Jack Chia Seng Hee (Lead Independent Director)
Dr Daniel Liu Danjun (Non-Executive

Non-Independent Director)
Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong (Non-Executive Independent Director)
The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with
the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and the Code of Corporate Governance. In performing those
functions, the Audit Committee reviewed:

- the scope and the results of internal audit procedures with the
internal auditors;

- the audit plan of the Company’s independent auditors and any
recommendations on internal accounting controls arising from
the statutory audit;

- the assistance given by the Company’s management to the
independent auditors;

- the periodic results announcements prior to their submission to
the Board of Directors for approval;

- the statement of financial position of the Company and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 prior to
their submission to the Board of Directors, as well as the
independent auditors’ report on the statement of financial
position of the Company and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group; and

- interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited).
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The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors
that the independent auditors, Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP, be
nominated for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company. The Audit Committee has conducted an
annual review of non-audit services provided by the auditors to
satisfy itself that the nature and extent of such services will not affect
the independence and objectivity of the external auditors before
confirming their re-nomination.

In appointing the external auditors for the Company and subsidiaries,
the Board of Directors has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
Further details regarding the Audit Committee are disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Independent auditors

The independent auditors, Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP, have

expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Liu Ming
Director

Jack Chia Seng Hee
Director

24 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS
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Crowe Horwath.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shanghai
Turbo Enterprises Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 50 to 104, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company
are properly drawn up in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) so as to give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional Conduct and
Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significant in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP
Chartered Accountants of Singapore
Member Crowe Horwath International

8 Shenton Way

#05-01 AXA Tower
Singapore 068811

+65 6221 0338

+65 6221 1080 Fax
www.crowehorwath.com.sg
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

The key audit matter

Credit risk concentration and

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Risk Response

recoverability of receivables

Two major customers of the
Group contributed 67% of the
total revenue of the Group.
As at 31 December 2016, the
amount due from these two
customers represented 85% of
trade receivable of the Group
(excluding bills receivable).

An impairment loss of RMB
4,550,000 has been recognised
on one of the major customers,
which represents 99% of
the total impairment loss on
receivables recognised in profit
or loss for the year.

Management’s judgement
is required to assess the
recoverability and impairment
of these trade receivables.
From the historical trend, long
turnover days for debts indicates
significant delay in payment
beyond credit term and normal
business practice. As such, the
management had taken into
account the individual receivable
turnover days when estimating
expected cash flows from
collection which extend beyond
1 year.

The key judgement applied
by management is disclosed
in Note 2 to the financial
statements and the relevant
disclosures on the credit risk are
disclosed in Note 31(iii) to the
financial statements.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
EEshERERAR

Our audit of impairment losses
on trade receivables focused
on challenging management’s
assessment of these material
overdue debts and reviewing the
computation of the impairment.

Our key procedures applied
include:

1. Testing the ageing report of
the trade receivables for its
accuracy and reliability.

2. Discussing with management
to obtain understanding of
the payment ability, trading
pattern and whether there
has been disputes with these
two customers.

3. Examining evidence
of receipts from these
customers subsequent to
year end date.

4. Evaluating management
assumptions used to
determine impairment loss
amount with reference to
turnover days, historical
collection pattern, and the
broader macro-economic
industry factors.

5. Challenging the management's
assumption on discount rate.

Based on the above audit
procedures performed, we
found the impairment losses
provided on trade receivables
to be reasonable. We have
also considered the Group’s
disclosures about the estimation
uncertainty and the credit risks
to be sufficient.

8 Shenton Way
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Singapore 068811
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

The key audit matter

Inventories management:

Inventories represented
approximately 9% of the total
assets of the Group. As at 31
December 2016, the net carrying
amount of inventories amounted
to RMB 33,582,000, which
is stated after an allowance
of inventories obsolescence
of RMB 3,341,000. Write-
down recognised in profit and
loss during the year is RMB
2,700,000.

Management’'s judgement
is required to assess the
appropriate level of provisioning
required for the inventories. This
process involves estimating the
future replacement demand for
the batches of inventories.

The management had assessed
the appropriateness level of
provisioning against inventory
obsolescence through the
specific identification by the
sales department on the status
of related completed or on-
going sales contracts. The
management had also taken
into consideration the ageing
and conditions of the inventories
by category and by project, as
well as the historical trend of
replacement sales.

The key judgement applied
by management is disclosed
in Note 2 to the financial
statements and the breakdown
of inventories are disclosed
in Note 11 to the financial
statements.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Risk Response

Our audit of inventories
valuation focused on challenging
management’s assessment of
the inventories obsolescence.

Our key procedures applied
include:

1. Testing the inventories
ageing report for its accuracy
and reliability.

2. Testing the controls over the
purchasing of raw material
and consumables to ensure
that purchases were made in
accordance with production
plan and related sales order.

3. Discussing with management
to obtain understanding of
the inventory management
plans with regards to the
finished goods produced for
replacement orders.

4. Independently assessing the
adequacy of the allowance
for obsolescence, taking
into consideration the
status of the related sales
contract, timing and quantity
of the completed sales
contracts, the ageing and
conditions of the inventories,
historical usage pattern,
and the possibility of future
replacement demand.

Based on the above audit
procedures performed, we found
the inventory obsolescence
provided in accordance with
management’s policy to be
supportable on the basis of
historical trends as well as
management’s inventory
management plans.

We have also considered the
Group’s disclosures about the
estimation uncertainty to be
sufficient.

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP
Chartered Accountants of Singapore
Member Crowe Horwath International
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Crowe Horwath.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of
the IFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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Crowe Horwath.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP
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Member Crowe Horwath International
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Goh Sia.

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
24 March 2017
Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP (UEN: TO8LL1312H) is an accounting

limited liability partnership registered in Singapore under the Limited Liability
Partnership Act (Chapter 163A).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE STATEMENT

HItERLFE

The Audit Committee (AC) met with the Company’s management and
the external auditor (EA) in August 2016 to discuss the FY2016 audit
plans, during which significant financial reporting issues including
identification of key audit matters (KAMs) were discussed.

For FY2016, the EA had identified the credit concentration and
recoverability of accounts receivables and inventory valuation as
key audit matters, and in its audit report, the EA had agreed to the
impairment of RMB 4.5 million to the accounts receivables to account
for the longer collection period, as well as the impairment of RMB 2.7
million to the inventories to account for obsolescence.

The AC discussed these impairments with both management and the
EA, and was satisfied with the rationale for such impairments, and the
assumptions and methodologies used.

Notwithstanding the negative impact the accounts receivables
impairment had on the FY2016 financial results, the AC would like to
clarify that such impairments are not realised financial losses to the
company as yet, because the impairment merely provided for the
longer collection period beyond normal credit terms. There were no
write-downs nor write-offs to the accounts receivables. Furthermore,
the AC would like to inform shareholders that it had directed
management to actively pursue the timely collection of all accounts
receivables amidst the challenging economic environment in China
and the business conditions of our customers. The Board had also
pegged the performance bonuses of management to such collections
and their timings to align both shareholder and management interests.

As for the impairment to inventories, this resulted in a realised
financial loss to the company, and the AC has directed management
to tighten the procurement and production processes to minimise
wastages and defects, and to take proactive action to prevent
recurrences.

Other than the KAMs, the AC also discussed other significant financial
reporting issues with the EA and management, including timeliness
of billing, delivery of goods, and recognition of outsourcing charges.
The AC is pleased to inform shareholders that none of these issues
warrant special mention this year as they all have been dealt with
by management and have been accounted for based on established
procedures and generally accepted accounting principles.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Tan Wee Peng Kelvin
Audit Committee Chairman

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

}lg =T ﬁ 15!5_ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #;E2016412/531 H 1
2 VAN [ 87 673 Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 2¢iG A Bif

Note Group Company
M FRH *AF
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRE ARMFR  ARHFR ARBFR

EQUITY s
Capital and reserves WA ARER
attributable to equity BABFEEN(E
holders of the Company %
Share capital B A 3 55,409 55,409 55,409 55,409
Share premium R AR AN 4 78,470 81,527 78,470 81,527
133,879 136,936 133,879 136,936
Other reserves Hitfig&s
Statutory reserve EEHEE 5 30,526 29,696 = -
Translation deficit SNHITEE TR 6 (3,207) (3,372) - -
27,319 26,324 - -
Retained earnings KA ECFE 7 166,884 163,231 = 1,810
TOTAL EQUITY BaEit 322,082 326,491 133,879 138,746
ASSETS BT
Non-current assets E |35 %k
Property, plant and equipment ~ #llr, [TRERIE& 8 126,332 101,846 = -
Subsidiaries FFA 9 - - 156,236 156,236
Land use right T IHhfsE R 10 9,787 10,038 = -
Current assets BT
Inventories 75 11 33,582 30,218 - -
Trade receivables VLN 12 164,045 168,314 = -
Other receivables, deposits =R ENTT
and prepayments E&RITF 13 4,713 10,207 96 -
Land use right b fE R 10 251 251 = -
Cash and cash equivalents MeERMEFNY 27 50,402 67,557 2,294 6,328
252,993 276,547 2,390 6,328
TOTAL ASSETS BBt 389,112 388,431 158,626 162,564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BIETARTR v e o iy s S e 12A s e
Note Group Company
ME XE&H b NS
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRLT ARMFR ARMTFRT AR®FR
LIABILITIES fafR
Current liabilities FahtalR
Trade payables IMEREIEN 14 52,409 46,254 — -
Other payables and accruals H b NI &
TR 15 4,765 11,169 543 1,051
Bank loan RITEIFX 16 7,000 - - -
R F R RIHIFII
Due to subsidiaries (non-trade) (FERZ) 17 = - 24,204 22,767
Income tax payable N ATEriSH 91 2,104 = -
64,265 59,527 24,747 23,818
Non-current liability JEF NS 1%
Deferred tax liability BRIEFR1SHE 18 2,765 2,413 = -
TOTAL LIABILITIES fafEt 67,030 61,940 24,747 23,818
NET ASSETS b2 T 322,082 326,491 133,879 138,746

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Bt B S = W S5 4R R AV LA R ER 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ér:- AN é ELI =~ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 &;E2016% 12431 H 1t
b=y gl | ﬁ_ NX. Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 2 A B

Note
201 201
B 016 015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARMT
Revenue B 19 136,977 141,475
Cost of sales HERA (106,333) (101,540)
Gross profit EFE 30,644 39,935
Other operating income HttzEWAN 20 2,783 3,182
Selling and distribution expenses HERTHER (2,866) (2,949)
Administrative expenses ITEZR (20,684) (21,849)
Other operating expenses HibzEHEM 21 (4,664) (222)
Finance costs e (226) -
Profit before income tax REL TR B 23 4,987 18,097
Income tax expense FR5%t 24 (2,694) (7,073)
Profit for the year &FiE 2,293 11,024
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EALRAWN/ (R%k)
Item that may be reclassified AMEEEHTEE
subsequently to profit or loss: RN A :
- Currency translation differences - AAHREERNIITHIE
arising from consolidation =5 6 165 (41)
Total comprehensive income for BESWEE, AEA
the year, representing profit ATIWERBEABFE
attributable to equity holders
of the Company 2,458 10,983
Earnings per share (cents) BREAN 4
Basic and diluted ERLE 25 8.35 40.13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

= AL =L R = For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & 220164 12/531 H .1t
?,-5 (=) *ﬂﬁﬁ_ xﬁj] %{ Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 74 A i

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AREARRGEREA

Translation
Share Share  Statutory deficit  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve SpmITEE  earnings equity
Bx  BRAEN EEHEs S| RoEFE EEH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARDTRE ARHTRT ARGTRT ARDTRE ARHTE

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive

income/(loss), net of tax

Currency translation differences
arising from consolidation

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve
Dividends (Note 26)

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2016

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss), net of tax

Currency translation differences
arising from consolidation

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve
Dividends (Note 26)

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 31 December 2016

(Note 3) (Note 4) (Note 5) (Note 6)
(FiH3E3) (MH3£4) (M$3£5) (Mt3£6)

Fo01551 A1 AZ &R 55,409 81,527 27,957 (3,331) 160,813 322,375
B HE - - - - 11,024 11,024
HipizAWAN/ (R%K) |
& F B = BT
WEES - - - (42) - (41)

BEABN/ (R%k)

- - - (41) 11,024 10,983
REEEMRES - - 1,739 - (1,739) -
RS (ME26) - - - - (6,867) (6,867)
BRABHER R

- - 1,739 - (8,606) (6,867)
F2015512831 A2 &% 55,409 81,527 29,696 (3,372) 163,231 326,491
Fo1651 B1HZ &4 55,409 81,527 29,696 (3372) 163,231 326491
B FE - - - - 2,293 2,293
Hitiz 5N/ (RK)

ey

E&H B E M
WEEH - - - 165 - 165
REABN/ (%)

_ - - 165 2,293 2,458
BEZEMES - - 830 - (830) -
B2 (HiiE26) - (3,057) - - (3,810) (6,867)
BRFRHEN TR

- (3,057) 830 - (4,640) (6,867)
F20165E12A31 HZ £ 55,409 78,470 30,526 (3,207) 160,884 322,082

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

PAN Ay i —1§ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
SHINERER

Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) #fA Bif

Note 2016 2015
MEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMmFT AR®FR
Cash flows from operating activities EEEFIFIBNERE
Profit before income tax FRASHLRTFE 4,987 18,097
Adjustments: BEEIE
Impairment loss on trade receivables MUK FURE S 15 4,608 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables — RZUUKFRRIE S 15
written back B (94) (552)
Allowance for inventory FHFRIRNZE
obsolescence 2,700 643
Amortisation of land use right b A S 251 251
Exchange differences LREER (922) (626)
Depreciation of property, plant and ol TTER
equipment W& 16,922 16,018
Interest income FlEE (107) (516)
Interest expenses FEFZ 226 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEML. T ER
and equipment WERETHR 26 137
Operating profit before working capital EZEAZLAIEE
changes FIiE 28,597 33,452
Inventories & (6,064) 9,647
Trade and other receivables IV g SRS ALV EN (3,931) 998
Trade and other payables IVERYE S B SAE N BN (249) (8,791)
Cash generated from operations BEEEMFFENNE 18,353 35,306
Interest income received S EHESUN N 107 516
Income taxes paid BT ATSH (4,355) (4,633)
Net cash generated from operating BEREME
activities HIEN & 2R 14,105 31,189
BB ARSI ER
Cash flows from investing activities I&RE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEY, TERIZERN
plant and equipment MERN 89 200
Purchase of property, plant and MHEY. TER
equipment W& A (32,343) (11,325)
Net cash used in investing activites R &EFNFIER N E S5 (32,254) (11,125)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
=1 For the financial ded 31 December 2016 & E20162£12/531 A 1L
é#flﬂbﬁ/ﬁ ==} % A%ousts”;r?n(?;ﬁngigr/ggnriinbi (/5/\%3 grﬁ/y/ﬁ B
Note 2016 2015
ME
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMFx
B FERNAT - Y
Cash flows from financing activities I&RE
Dividends paid EXftiRE 26 (6,867) (6,867)
Placement of pledged deposits TATHHRER 27 (9,894) -
Withdrawal of pledged deposits REUEIR R 27 13,935 4,463
Proceeds from bank loan RITHIRK 7,000 -
Interest expenses paid FEZH (226) -
Net cash from / (used in) financing REERIE TR/ (ERD B
activities MEnE 25 3,948 (2,404)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERAEFNINE
and cash equivalents (&) /4 (14,201) 17,660
Cash and cash equivalents at MBENNIE RIS
beginning of year Fihi 58,775 40,530
Effects of exchange rate changes ~ RHTAMNASRAE
in cash and cash equivalents SN 1,087 585
Cash and cash equivalents at end ~ MBEEERNHAER
of year NEFNY 27 45,661 58,775
Note A
BEE A
Total additions to property, plant and ~ SIEERL. T ER
equipment & 8 41,523 3,009
(Decrease) / Increase in deposits CRD) /EME 8 S EE BRI,
paid included in other receivables, EE R INHIEZES
deposits and prepayments 13 (9,180) 8,316
Purchase of property, plant and AEHMERERTTEHD
equipment per consolidated TMEY. EBRIEE
statement of cash flows 32,343 11,325

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
)\ & X B * /E Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 22 9A il

hese notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying financial statements.

56

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanghai Turbo Enterprises Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company domiciled and incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and listed on the Main Board of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is located at
No.9, Yinghua Road, Zhonglou Economic Development Zone,
Changzhou City, Jiangsu Province, 213016 the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC").

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are shown in
Note 9.

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below and are drawn up in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(RMB’000) as indicated.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires management to exercise its judgement,
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It
also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the financial year. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used that are
significant to the financial statements and areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in this
Note.

Adoption of new and revised standards

On 1 January 2016, the Group adopted the new or amended
IFRS and Interpretations of IFRS (“INT IFRS”) that are
mandatory for application from that date. Changes to the
Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in
accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective
IFRS and INT IFRS. The adoption of these new or amended
IFRS and INT IFRS did not result in substantial changes to
the Group’s and Company’s accounting policies and had no
material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior
financial years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not adopted the following standards and

FESTEER (8

RECHHERNRER

interpretations that have been issued but not yet effective:

Description

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition
of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure
Initiative

Amend improvements to
Standards 2014-2016
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Financial Reporting
Standards

Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

IFRS

Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of

Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification

and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

- Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

- Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of
Investment Property

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial

Reporting Standards

IFRIC 22: Foreign
Transactions and
Consideration

IFRS 16 Leases

Currency
Advance

Amendments to IAS 10 and IAS 28:
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The directors expect that the adoption of the new or amended
standards and interpretations above will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial
application, except for the impending changes in accounting

policy on adoption of the following:

R

1EITIAS 12: FRAEIBRILERFSH AT
HARSEISIHR

1EITIAS 7: EEIHE TR
EITHE IFRS (20144E E20164F)

{&ITIFRS 1:
i

B E RN SR &8
1EITIAS 28: HBBHERWFEE
ol

{&ITIFRS 12: W ETEHMbSLIFNE

{&ITIFRS 2: B ftoEKit=E

- {&iTEIFRS 4: MFAIFRS 94Fh
TEXIFRS MRIEE[E
- {&ITIAS 40: $Z&EMlEEitr

IAS 28: HEBRBEDWAEEDI

- IFRS 9: €T H
IFRS 15: ZFPA& RN

IFRS 1: EERNMZIRE HEN

IFRS 22: 4325 K Ffs 3t

IFRS 16: FHE

&iTIAS 10 1AS 28: HAERH
BEtlsaEtlzEE~H
% PN

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on or
after

1 January 2017

1 January 2017

1 January 2017

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

Postponed
indefinitely
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce additional disclosure requirement
intended to enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financial activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group will apply these amendments prospectively in 2017.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, and introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The adoption of IFRS 9 will have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial liabilities. IFRS 9 also introduces
a new expected loss impairment model, and adds detailed
guidance on impairment-related presentation and disclosures.
IFRS 9 also contains new requirements on hedge accounting,
which adopts a more principle-based approach, and allows
entities to choose between applying hedge accounting
requirements of IFRS 9 or continue to apply the existing hedge
accounting requirements in FRS 39 for all hedge accounting.
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 with early application permitted. Based on the
Group’s preliminary assessment, the Group is not expecting
significant adjustment as the Group does not expect changes
in measurement basis of financial assets and liabilities. On the
other hand, the new standard may have impact on the level of
impairment losses on trade receivables.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers,
and will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective in 2018.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligations is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customers.

The application of IFRS 15 may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Based on the Group’s preliminary
assessment, the Group may need to reevaluate whether the
sales contract represents single performance obligation and
whether there is significant financing elements.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases

This new standard on leases supersedes the previous standard
(IAS 17) and interpretations and brings in a new definition
of a lease that will be used to identify whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. For leasees, IFRS 16 reforms leasee
accounting by introducing a single model similar to the existing
finance lease model. Specifically, lessees are required to
recognise all leases on their statements of financial position
to reflect their rights to use leased assets and the associated
obligations for lease payments, with limited exemptions.
However, lessor accounting, with the distinction between
operating and finance leases, remains largely unchanged.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted for
entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers at or before the date of initial application of this
standard. The Group will apply the new IFRS 16 when it
becomes effective in 2019. The Group does not expect a
material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have significant leasing arrangement as leases.

IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

IFRIC 22 requires a foreign currency transaction to be recorded
using spot exchange rate at the date of transaction.

This interpretation clarifies that when an entity pays or receives
consideration in advance in a foreign currency, the date of
transaction for the purpose of determining the transaction rate
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) is the date on which the entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or liability (such as prepayment or
deferred income) arising from the advance consideration.
As such, no exchange gain will arise from the transfer of
non-monetary asset or liability recognised for advance
consideration to the related asset, expense or income at
initial recognition. The interpretation applies to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, which an entity may
elect to apply either retrospectively or prospectively.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Group accounting

@

Subsidiaries

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° had power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

hen the Company has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° The size of the Company’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

° Potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties;

° Rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° Any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases
to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Group accounting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and any non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisition of businesses

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary comprises the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs,
other than those associated with the issue of debt or
equity securities, are expensed as incurred.

(a)

(b)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Group accounting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of businesses (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be
an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance
with 1AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it will not be
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries or businesses

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, including
any goodwill, are derecognised when a change in the
Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results
in a loss of control over the subsidiary. Amounts
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are also reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings if required by a
specific Standard.

Any retained interest in the entity is remeasured at fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the retained investment at the date when control
is lost and its fair value is recognised in profit or loss.
Subsequently, the retained interest is accounted for as
an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-
sale financial asset depending on the level of influence
retained.

Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s statement of
financial position. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries,
the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Currency translation
0] Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each entity are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
functional currency of the Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional
currency (“foreign currency”) are measured in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and
its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition
in the functional currencies at exchange rates
approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at reporting date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items
that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign
operations, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign
currency translation reserve in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. The foreign currency translation
reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the
Group on disposal of the foreign operation.

Translation of the Group’s financial statements

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into Chinese Renminbi at the rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date and their profit or
loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control
of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interest and are not recognised in profit or loss.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded
at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
initially recognised includes its purchase price and any cost
that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment including subsequent
expenditure is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment
is required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific lives and
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance expenses are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment except
for leasehold buildings are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Construction in progress includes all cost of construction and
other direct costs. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
complete and ready to use.

Construction in progress are not depreciated. All other items
of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method to write-off the cost of the assets less
estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives as
follows: -

FESHEE (8
ok, TEERE

e, T RERIREETAIEZESHE
FRANM. 4l [~ B9 B B A 54
AR FEIEMSLN, MERAEREE
AR EERMENEZSLUEE
B ERMARIEE, Pl | BRR &
BAE, 8 EEEXHNERRTHIAN
—IZEr, HAMNE, RERHEXEFRH
mRATRERAAER, MZBMBEN &
RE A EMITE. S, T ERIRER
FAEMAFEHITER, KEAHIATH
BEAERNEMFERNX AR, F
i, SFENVMAITRNGE, HE
RE B &NIKEMERIAAER,
MR NFHRHEN. FEHMBYEE
RiRFHEAELERT N SEAIRE.

SWEMLMIN, Y, T ERZEEERE
AMEIHT BRI R IR ER K.

ARIEABREARAMERSERNAE
. SEMHBRANERGE, ERIEE
B T EFREREN L.

EEITETHERIE. 9. [ BERES
HIET A AR H BT IHFRRAELEE
T BRI R SR E AR A R T AT
ERFERMT: -

Estimated residual value
as a percentage of cost (%)

Useful lives (Years) itk E NEABREH—1
ERER () Bok

Leasehold Buildings FEEN 20 10

Plant and machinery g% 10 10

Office equipment VNN 10

Motor vehicles HahZE 10

Renovation ES P 3 -

The residual value, estimated useful life and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
reporting date to ensure that the amount, method and period
of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial
statements until they are no longer in use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on retirement or
disposal is determined as the difference between any sales
proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is
recognised in the profit or loss within “other operating income
(expenses)”.

Land use right

Land use right is initially measured at cost. Following
initial recognition, land use right is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The land use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term of 50 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an
asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
dependent on those from other assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an asset since the last impairment loss was
recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. This increase cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
previously. Such reversal is recognised in the profit and loss
unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

0]

(i)

(iii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised on the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets classified as held-to-
maturity, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature of the assets
and the purpose for which the assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. As at the reporting date,
the Group did not have any financial assets in the
categories of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are presented as
current assets, except for those expected to be realised
later than 12 months after the reporting date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
comprise cash and cash equivalents as well as trade
and other receivables, including amounts due from
related companies, but exclude advances to suppliers,
prepayments and VAT receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Derecognition (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised or derecognised on the trade date, i.e.
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
the assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

0]

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying
amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly
or if an amount was charged to the allowance account,
the amount charged to the allowance account is written
off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss on financial assets has
been incurred, the Group considers factors such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay
in payments.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0] Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable
value. Raw materials comprise purchase cost accounted for
on a weighted average basis. Work-in-progress and finished
goods comprise cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
attributable proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on normal operating capacity. These costs are assigned on a
weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to be incurred for selling and
distribution.

Financial liabilities
0] Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. Financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. As at the reporting date, the Group
did not have any financial liabilities in the category of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when liabilities are derecognised, and through the
amortisation process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
(iii)  Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
profit or loss.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right
is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are classified as
share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issuance of new ordinary shares are deducted against
share capital.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
the associated costs can be reliably measured, regardless of
when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts, rebates and sales taxes or duty. The Group
assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting
as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer
of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed. Revenue is not recognised to
the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods.

Revenue from subcontracting services is recognised over the
period in which the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the effective interest rates applicable. Dividend income is
recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Employees’ benefits
(i) Retirement benefits

The subsidiary, incorporated and operating in the
PRC, is required to provide certain retirement plan
contribution to their employees under the existing
PRC regulations. Contributions are provided at rates
stipulated by the PRC regulations and are managed
by government agencies, which are responsible for
administering these amounts for the subsidiary’s
employees.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.

(i) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees.

Borrowings

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at
least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction
costs and subsequently carried for at amortised costs using
the effective interest method. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Borrowings which are due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date are
included in current borrowings in the statement of financial
position even though the original term was for a period longer
than twelve months and an agreement to refinance, or to
reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed after
the reporting date and before the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Income tax

0]

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current income tax for current and prior periods is
recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the tax authorities, using tax rates
and tax laws that have been substantively enacted by
the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Current income
taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow deferred tax assets to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
0] Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income or equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

(i) Value-added-tax (“VAT")

The Group’s sales of goods and service income in the
PRC are subject to VAT at the applicable tax rate of
17% for PRC domestic sales. Input tax on purchases
can be deducted from output VAT. The net amount
of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of “Other receivables” or
“Other payables” in the statement of financial position.
The Group’s export sales are not subject to VAT.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all terms and conditions relating to the grants have been
complied with. When the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the statement
of financial position and is amortised to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Dividends

Interim dividends are recorded in the financial year in which
they are declared payable. Final dividends are recorded in
the financial year in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders.

Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group and the Company if that person:
0] Has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) Has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if
any of the following conditions applies:

0] The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Company
or an entity related to the Company.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
with financial institutions, excluding cash deposits pledged for a
period of more than three months. Cash and cash equivalents
are short term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subjected to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

(Continued)

0] Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

(@ Impairment of loans and receivables
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(a) BISXAIRYATA e

Management reviews its loans and receivables
for objective evidence of impairment at least
annually. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, and default or significant delay
in payments resulting in receivables with
excessively long turnover days as compared to
credit term and normal business practice are
considered objective evidence that a receivable
is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgement by assessing the loans and
receivables individually from historical trend
whether there has been a significant change
in the payment ability of the debtor, or whether
the significant delay in payment which extends
beyond one year results in impairment loss.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgements as to whether
an impairment loss should be recorded as an
expense. In determining this, management
uses estimates based on historical trend and
assumptions on the expected timing of collection
based on specific receivables turnover days,
taking into account also macro-economic industry
factors.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31 December 2016 and the relevant credit risk
information are disclosed in Note 12 and Note
31(iii) respectively.

As disclosed in Note 31(iii), allowance for
impairment amounting to RMB 4,550,000 (2015:
Nil) has been recognised on a major customer
with receivables turnover days more than one
year representing significant delay in payment,
which is determined by discounting the expected
collection to present value. Actual collection
which is faster or slower than expected may
result in reversal or additional impairment losses
within the next financial year.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

0]

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(@)

(b)

(Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

No allowance for impairment has been made
for customers whose balance was past due as
at reporting dates with turnover days within one
year, as there has not been significant change
in credit quality in view of the established
trading pattern and steady collection record. If
the financial condition of the customers were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
its ability to make payments or delay in its
payments, allowances may be required. If 10%
of such balances could only be collected in 2018,
the Group’s allowance for impairment loss on
trade receivables for the year would increase by
RMB 411,238 (2015: RMB 929,567).

Net realisable values of inventory

An assessment of net realisable values is made
periodically on inventory for excess inventory,
obsolescence and declines in net realisable
value below cost and an allowance is recorded
against the inventory balance for any such
declines. These reviews require management
to estimate future demand for the products and
assessed the inventories obsolescence by taking
into consideration the status of the completed
or on-going sales contracts, the ageing and
condition of the inventories by categories and by
projects and the historical trend of replacement
sales. This process is complex and subject to
estimation uncertainty as it involves estimation of
future events.

Possible changes in these estimates could
result in revisions to the valuation of inventory.
As disclosed in Note 11, the net carrying
amount of inventories of the Group as at 31
December 2016 is RMB 33,582,000 (2015:
RMB 30,218,000), which is stated after a
total allowance for inventory obsolescence of
approximately RMB 3,341,000 (2015: RMB
9,842,000). If the expected demand for the
Group’s finished goods aged above 1 year and
stated at cost is 10% lower than expected, the
Group’s allowances for inventory obsolescence
for the year would increase by RMB 536,583 (
2015:RMB 467,264).

2,
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R E SRR & IFEmA RS
411,2385C (20154: AR
929, 5677T)

PRI T EE

|

% SIS IILIE, FRIATE
R TBERAMFHSTL
ELHERITE, FMMEMZ
A TBRIG LA R B REE .
TR RETE R R0k
KR, BT 7oA 1 it
THOHESRERES, &%
T 7 S HOBES PR 2 25 K
HEHPH BT, TGS
BRIAME, lidiess, B2
ERME R E M S, &
H B R HSEEN T -

AT RTINS SHE
EEERNEEE., FHMEE11E
=, NEHAT2016512831H
MEREKEEHAARD
33,582, 0007T (20154E: AR
M30,218,0007T) , HEFEIE
H4 R ARMS, 341,000 T
(2015%: AERM9, 842,000
T) MEKRKIEZERS. &
X A SR B B 1d — SN ST AR
mr AR AN FREREE K 2 EL FRAR R
10%, ANEFKEEHEFEER
ANz &Y% 1€ AR 536, 583
5t (20155 : AR467, 264
T .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

0] Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

©

(Continued)
Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the group-wide provision for income taxes. In
determining the income tax liability other than
undistributed earnings, the management has
estimated the amount of capital allowances
and the deductibility of certain expenses. In
determining the tax rate applied to the deferred
tax assets and liabilities, the management
has estimated that the concessionary tax rate
under “High Technology Enterprise” status will
be successfully renewed. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
estimates, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is
made. The carrying amount of the income tax
payable and deferred tax liability of Group as at
31 December 2016 are RMB 91,000 and RMB
2,765,000 (2015: RMB 2,104,000 and RMB
2,143,000) respectively.

Deferred tax liability on undistributed profits

In determining the amount of deferred tax
liabilities on the undistributed earnings of the
subsidiary, the management considers the
dividend policy and cash flows needs for the
corporate and treasury functions at the holding
company level for the foreseeable future. Such
deferred tax liabilities stood at RMB 3,546,000
(2015: RMB 3,001,000) as at 31 December 2016
(Note 18), which arose from retained earnings
of the subsidiary totalling RMB 35,459,000
(2015: 60,011,000). Deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised on the remaining undistributed
earnings amounting to RMB 107,629,000 (2015:
RMB 90,017,000) as it is probable that such
undistributed earnings will be reinvested for the
foreseeable future as part of the Company’s
continuing investment in the subsidiary. Had the
Group increased its expected dividend pay-out
for the foreseeable future by 10%, the deferred
tax liabilities would have increased by 10%.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD

EEHALRBIRAR

2.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

FESUBER (8)
EENSHET, R (8
(i) XBEOSIHEHMBEE (8

(c) FriigHt

AERAREFENRLFEZ AR
B, EREEBENEANNFS R
FEEHRERNFIET. EREHRE
MAame, BRTRPEBEN, B
BEAMITAAH# R/ EWMTAE
LINRAER. AHMERRERT
BIELEFB M E M AEE, EEE
EIHRAEN “SEEARS” 5%
MMERERSRINGEY ., AR
ENNRABRSERTEMEIT, X
ThzE J 4% 5200 781X EX BR8] FR 73+ A9
FriSfifB SRR EFEIE. &
EHFAF2016F12831 BRI N T AR
BRAMMBERIN AR KE
MEDHNAANETI, 000TRAR
M2, 765,0007T (20154 : AR™
2,104,000t X ARR™2, 143, 000
T .

S TE T B R fa f

EE T ARIR DB E R IBIE B
BHARNESHR, ERATRESE
BEEARRAMINBERLT, ©
Ml Fn v B ER B8 X B B BUR AN £ 57
EMER. F20165F12831H, 1%
BIEFF S A AR M3, 546, 000
7t (20154 : AR3, 001, 0007T)
(M3E18) , FEEFLARREA
R M35, 459, 000 7T B 1R BB B &K B 7=
4 (20154 : 60,011, 0007C) »
BIEFFEHRAGERSHERSE
FAESTMEBARHE AN, BEAA
Rm™M107, 629, 000t AR™ (2015
%: 90,017,000t AR™) , BX
BTN, MEARERERE
B—ER4y, XEREKRSEFE, £
AMNEEAK, BERETFA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

0]

(i)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(d)

(Continued)
Useful lives of plant and machinery

The cost of plant and machinery for the
manufacture of precision vane products are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
plant and machinery’s estimated economic
useful lives. Management estimates the useful
lives of these plant and machinery to be 10
years and the residual values to be 10% of the
cost of these assets. These are common life
expectancies and residual values applied in the
industry. Changes in the expected level of usage
and technological developments could impact the
economic useful lives and the residual values
of these assets, therefore, future depreciation
charges could be revised. The carrying amount
of the Group’s plant and machinery at 31
December 2016 was approximately RMB
106,026,000 (2015: RMB 81,510,000) (Note
8). If the remaining useful lives of these assets
as at 31 December 2016 increase / decrease
by 10% from the management’s estimate, the
Group’s depreciation expense for the next
financial year would have decreased / increased
by RMB1,123,000 / RMB 1,362,000 respectively
(2015: decreased / increased by RMB
RMB1,501,000 / RMB 1,279,000 respectively).

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

There are no critical judgements made by management
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that have significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

2,

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

FESUBER (80
EENTHET, BT (8
(i) X|EOSIHEITAMRIE (20

() HFEREEFHER

£ BN R SR A2
UEBHEFERERIEELE
ZE. EBEEMHITXET M
WHEREFGZ10FE, MEXREKMN
ERXEEFHARARA0%, XLk
= TEIT Al E D0 B T ER & A A0 R A 5k
H1E. EFEAPHTEKFERNTK
AR B & R AT LA i 3X Lk 3% =
MEFERERMFKME,
tt, REWITFIBEZ2TLUENR. T
20165F12831H, ARERARNYI.
MW EENKENEANOARD
106, 026, 0007 (20154: AR
81,510,0007TL) (Mi¥8) . &F
2016512831 H, Z&EWESR
FAEMUSEENMMGEM/ T
£10%, AERATTNMEHEEDN
WHAZE A THE/EMART
1,123,000t/ A1, 362, 0007T
(2015%: HHTE/EMART
1,501,000t/ ARM 1,279,000
L) .

(ii) HRIESLER< T BURR X8 i

(89

EEEANRAMSBERHNEES R
BXERR M ZRTAEL KRR
FI B E T R Z R0 T EHAIAT .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
)\ & X B * /E Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 22 9A il

3. SHARE CAPITAL 3. RBx
Group and Company
£AMAT
2016 2015 2016 2015
Number of ordinary
shares at US$0.25 each US$'000 US$'000
LBk H = (BhR0. 255 7T) EV EV
Authorised HeAERR A 200,000,000 200,000,000 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid ZITHHE
At beginning and end of the
year FENEFERER 27,468,473 27,468,473 6,867 6,867
Equivalent to (RMB’000) HEFT (ARM 000) 55,409 55,409

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares
carry one vote per share without restriction.

B R AU R E (R I E E]R
RHRE. MALZEREAES—RR—F
HIARF], TZAEMABRE.

Under The Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which a dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
EEshERERAR

4. SHARE PREMIUM 4. BAERH
Group and Company
EHAFNF
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMTR
At beginning of the year FER 81,527 81,527
Divident paid (Note 26) EXMTRE (MiE 26) (3,057) -
At end of the year FERER 78,470 81,527

RI|EFSHRBARE (1B , ARAER
BN KB B AR R IR SRS E
BARINERER, RBARAE—MRNZEL

REFTE RS .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. STATUTORY RESERVE

5.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

FEEEREES

Percentage of
contribution from

profit after tax Group
FEFEMNREE 7t &£H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMmFE ARMFR
Statutory reserve fund EERES 10% 30,526 29,696

In accordance with the Foreign Enterprise Law of the PRC,
the subsidiary, being a wholly foreign-owned enterprise is
required to make contributions to a statutory reserve fund. At
least 10 per cent of the statutory after-tax profits as determined
in accordance with the applicable PRC accounting standards
and regulations is required to be allocated to the statutory
reserve fund. If the cumulative total of the statutory reserve
fund reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital,
the enterprise will not be required to make any additional
contribution.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to offset accumulated
losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiary,
subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities and is
not available for dividend distribution to the shareholders. The
PRC enterprise is prohibited from distributing dividends unless
the losses (if any) of previous years have been made up.

RBHERSMNERIE, ER—INEH
HEWHPEFLARMZMMEEREE.
ZED 10%HEERSHEFE, RIES
ApESITHENRERHERE, 2E%
EEMEEE. MRATHEEREEIEE
ZFLRR CEMBEARM 50%, g
T HE MRS IR

REUVAE & S A TR S IREIB M T
RARPEMEAR, BRSEHEABRXER]
HOHtE, TARTRMS ERERE. F
E il RIS ERFE, BRIFEFNT
! (B 245

6. TRANSLATION DEFICIT 6. SPHIESHR
Group
&M=

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFRT ARGFxT
At beginning of the year FEMESR (3,372) (3,331)

Currency translation differences
arising from consolidation ERFEHAERINCERIRNE 165 (41)
At end of the year FRER (3,207) (3,372)
7. RETAINED EARNINGS 7. ROEFHAE
Company
NS

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFRT ARMFR

At beginning of the year FER 1,810 (1,634)

Profit for the year REEFE 2,000 10,311
Dividend paid (Note 26) BEXMARE (FE 26) (3,810) (6,867)

At end of the year FERGESR = 1,810
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8. flk, MBMEE
Group Leasehold  Plant and Office Motor Construction
37| buildings  machinery equipment  vehicles Renovation in progress Total
MEEN  NSERE  HoAR NBE REXE TEIRE Bit
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARTFE  ARGmFR  ARTFR ARHFR ARTFR ARGHFR  ARGFER
Cost A
As at 1.1.2015 F2015F181H 32,580 204,009 3,818 4,561 1,731 1,934 248,633
Additions #m - 2,388 621 - - - 3,009
Disposals RE/AE - (2,883) (23) - - - (2,906)
Transfer to / (from) BN/ - 1,934 - - - (1,934) -
As at 31.12.2015 F2015F12831H 32,580 205,448 4,416 4,561 1,731 - 248736
As at 1.1.2016 B2016%1R1H 32,580 205,448 4,416 4,561 1,731 - 248,736
Additions 1 - 38,384 73 - 3,066 - 41523
Disposals RE/RE - (907) (94) (149) - - (1,150)
As at 31.12.2016 F2016512831H 32,580 242,925 4,395 4,412 4,797 - 289,109
Accumulated ESagiitl=!
depreciation
As at 1.1.2015 F2015F181H 13,977 113,443 2,852 2,507 662 - 133,441
Charge for the year LERI 1,454 13,043 340 682 499 - 16,018
Disposals WE/ALE - (2,548) (21) - - - (2,569)
As at 31.12.2015 F2015F12831H 15,431 123,938 3171 3,189 1,161 - 146,890
As at 1.1.2016 B201651R1H 15,431 123,938 317 3,189 1,161 - 146,890
Charge for the year LR 1,454 13,777 376 415 900 - 16922
Disposals RE/RE - (816) (85) (134) - - (1,035)
As at 31.12.2016 F2016%12831H 16,885 136,899 3,462 3,470 2,061 - 162,777
Net carrying amount  TKE/#{E
As at 31.12.2016 F2016%E12R31H 15,695 106,026 933 942 2,736 - 126,332
As at 31.12.2015 F20155F12H31H 17,149 81,510 1,245 1,372 570 — 101,846

Machinery with net carrying amount of RMB 17,683,000 (2015:
Nil) that is included in plant and machinery is pledged in
connection with bill payable facilities (Note 14).

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD

EEHALRBIRAR

BRFEE BRIMWMFPBREART
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

SUBSIDIARIES 9. FoAE
Company
NS
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFIT ARMFT
Unquoted equity shares, at cost I EHIRANIES:, AASN 156,236 156,236
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: FATRIMEMIER:
Country of
incorporation
and place of Proportion (%) of
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities business ownership inerest
FAREIR FEWE AME X ¥ERREE 151
2016 2015
% %
Bt Bt
Held by the Company &5
Best Success (Hong Kong) Limited® Investment holding Hong Kong 100 100
(“Best Success”)
BR (&8 aRaA © (“BR”) REER BiE
Held by Best Success BR#FH
Changzhou 3D Technological Complete Manufacturing of vane PRC 100 100

Set Equipment Co., Limited®
(“Changzhou 3D”)
EMNT=H#RARERZHRAT?
(“EM=4")

products and relating
subcontracting services
& =R AL A
AXRIEERS

(1) Audited by S. W. Chan & Co, Hong Kong and reviewed by
Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP for consolidation purpose.

(2)  Audited by Changzhou Xinhuarui CPAs (&M EEREEE ST
E %), a firm of Certified Public Accountants registered in the
PRC for statutory purpose and by Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP

for consolidation purpose.

LAND USE RIGHT

[

(1) BAEES W BFERQBAEZMBESEESE
—ERBINESAAITESRE.

(2) AEMNIERKETINESAHET, ER
—REPEARKMERZ AR ITIRRE
S, BRI ERERE, MESEES
—ERRINESHERRTESHEN.

10. :HbfERR
Group
&H&
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  ARBFR

Cost
At beginning and end of the year

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of the year
Charge for the year

At end of the year

Net carrying amount
At beginning of the year

At end of the year

B
FHEFERER

Zit ik
&4

HET M
FRER

TKHE$E
FMER

FRER

12,547 12,547
2,258 2,007
251 251
2,509 2,258
10,289 10,540
10,038 10,289
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|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
)\ & X B * /E Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 22 9A il

10.  LAND USE RIGHT (Continued) 10. MafERH (4R)
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFR

Presentation on statement of financial

position, based on amount to be EMAEE=RGRERD
amortised: =ETOMNET
- Not later than one year, current
portion - OF—5F, RS 251 251

- Later than one year but not later

than five years - Zd—FELTRE 1,004 1,004
- Later than five years - ZEHFE 8,783 9,034
Non-current portion ERENERS 9,787 10,038
The Group has land use right over a plot of state-owned land AERAERERE—RWESR T HAVER
in the PRC where the Group’s manufacturing and storage WIEARERGISEFEFEEITE. i
facilities reside. The land use right is not transferable and has a FERMAEEIL, HE 40FERRISTEH
remaining tenure of 40 years (2015: 41 years). (20154F: 414F) .
The land use right with net carrying amount of RMB 10,038,000 T3t ALY F K E 4118910, 038, 0007T
(2015: RMB 10,289,000) are pledged in connection with bank ﬁi;ﬁﬂgggfﬁﬁ%_ﬁiigg 2(&;71;00172 E
loan (Note 16) for the year, and bills payable facilities in 2015. RUTEZ BT SATAIR i =
(Note 16)for the ¥ ey R2015% BORL 4RI TR IR 5.
11. INVENTORIES ". &#8H
Group
&M=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTTRE ARGFR
Statements of Financial Position: BEfRk
Raw materials B 2,052 2,646
Work-in-progress TEH & 13,697 13,963
Finished goods AR 17,833 13,609
33,582 30,218
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 4E&RzE3H
and Other Comprehensive Income: Hibzz gl
Inventories recognised as expense in WIAFTAHEZR
cost of sales H#F LR 35,074 44,087
Inclusive of following charge: BIETT
- Inventories written-down - FRIRE 2,700 643

82 SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
)\ & X B * /E Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 22 9A il

INVENTORIES (Continued) 1. FHED
The movement in allowance for inventory obsolescence is as FERBRIAN BRI T :
follows:
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARDTFRE ARGFR
At beginning of the year FEMESR 9,842 9,881
Allowance written off E2 8- g (9,201) (682)
Additional allowance provided BoMERLE 2,700 643
At end of the year FERGESR 3,341 9,842
TRADE RECEIVABLES 12. RIHUKR
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRX  ARGFR
Trade receivables (Note A) RZUkER (FH3EA) 135,402 146,822
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables (Note 31 (iii))
BB EAES (BHE 31 i) (9,245) (4,731)
126,157 142,091
Bills receivable NUTZE#HE 37,888 26,223
164,045 168,314
Note A BEIEA
Included in the Group’s trade receivables are unbilled trade receivables ﬁ % Eélo%ﬁ_% %gﬁl&ﬁ %E%éﬁ;‘]{)ﬁoﬁgﬁ
amounting to approximately RMB 11,244,000 (2015: RMB 745,000) 4 T 0% : , JT
arising from revenue recognised on sales of goods amounting to E"J*&i%%_ﬁllﬁtﬁﬁlﬁ; FEHRBEARD
RMB 3,731,000 (2015: RMB 745,000) and subcontracting services 3,731,000 JTHY~miHE (20154 : AR™M
amounting to RMB 7,513,000 (2015: Nil) but not invoiced to customers 745,0007T) REEARM7, 513, 0005 (2015
as at 31 December 2016. Unbilled receivable will normally be billed F: T) MNERFH~E, BF 2016612
within 3 months from the time of revenue recognition. The directors AtHREELL S, KK B MYETIKE—
are of the view that all unbilled receivable as at the reporting date BRMBARA R EE3 T A& B, EESIA
are hillable and collectible eventually. Out of the unbilled receivables A, THREHHNAERK 8 NEKTE S &
as at 31 December 2016, an amount of RMB 7,587,000 has been g%;ﬁ%ﬁgﬂ&%_ gé}?;g%ﬁégﬁjq%%iﬁﬁ E{é
subsequently billed up to the date of this report. : . JCHYH SR AL TR, P
auenty pec i P REREEMRERKE.
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 13, HFEWR, ESMAMGRK
Group Company
&H NA]
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT ARMBFR ARMFRT ARMFR
Advances to suppliers EREINTEL O EREN 473 373 = -
Deposits for plant and T LA IS 2 HY
equipment EE - 9,180 = -
Prepayments SIEREN 601 224 96 -
Other receivables AT EN 378 430 = -
VAT receivables N UWIE{ERER 3,261 - = -
4,713 10,207 96 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
)\ & X B * /E Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 22 9A il

TRADE PAYABLES 14,  RfTHERR
Group
&M=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRE  ARMTFR
Trade payables RZ{}5xln 15,822 13,506
Bills payable (Note A) RZ{FZE4& (Fft;EA) 36,587 32,748
52,409 46,254
Note A BEEA
Machinery with net carrying amount of RMB 17,683,000 (Note 8) BETHIWMAEENEEARMT17, 683, 0007T
that included in the plant and machinery and cash deposits of RMB e ENE (MEs) , RREARM
4,741,000 (Note 27) are pledged in connection with bills payable 4,741, 000TC I & F 7k, HT&EZE 2016512
facilities granted by banks for the year ended 31 December 2016. A3 BB XNTIRITRERIBIE R,
The land use right with net carrying amount of RMB 10,289,000 (Note HE20156F12831H, #KENEAART
10) and cash deposits of RMB 8,782,000 (Note 27) are pledged in 10, 289, 0007 K 13t {5 FA4X (Fﬁ&mt)h EBfE
connection with bills payable facilities granted by banks for the year AEFﬁAEFﬁ‘L 741, OOOEE"]ﬂ‘!ﬁﬁﬁT}\ (2015
*H;ér_'ﬁfﬁﬂ'n Iﬁﬂ']ﬁ&#ﬁun
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 15, RABRAHRMEITTRE
Group Company
&H NS
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT ARMFIT ARMFRT ARMFR
Accrued operating
expenses (Note A) HREEHR (MFEA 81912 6,643 543 1,051
Advance from customer & FFiftHk 259 - - -
Other payables = RIANAREN 346 268 - -
VAT payable N ATHEER - 3,739 - -
Other taxes payable RN ESTEN 248 519 — -
4,765 11,169 543 1,051
Note A T

Included in the accrued operating expenses is director’'s incentive
payable for the current year of RMB 49,000 (2015: RMB 2,203,000),
in accordance with an incentive award scheme approved by the
Remuneration Committee. The director’s incentive is computed based
on the Group’s net profit for the year.

Mt EEF L BIERBEHFMERSHENR
Fhitxl, BEARMA49, 0007T (20154: A
RmM2, 203 000T) MWEEEENTERH. &
EXEMERBEAERANER SFETER.

BANK LOAN -
16, SBYTH™
Group
il
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIE  ARMBFR
Secured borrowings 18R 5% 7,000
The secured term loan is repayable on 10 April 2017 and bears R ERPR Y = T 201 75E4 B 10 B £21F,
interest at 4.57% per annum, which is classified as current Eﬁ%?;gg;ﬁ 7%%’]2]{10 Hﬁﬁlgg:]i#&%
liabilities as at reporting date. This term loan is secured by land AN BABR BY 5K =2 1A
poring Y AR REIERER (62

use right (Note 10).
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|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
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DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES (NON-TRADE) 17. EfFF8 GRS
These non-trade balances are unsecured, interest-free and iZ“:‘fﬂE%%é*ﬁ%ﬂE?&?Eﬁ, EY=SE LG
repayable on demand. EREIL,
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 18. IBIEFTIEH
Group
£H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTTRT ARG FR
At beginning of the year FER 2,413 1,999
Recognised in the profit or loss
(Note 24) INATROIREEME (BiSE 24D 352 414
At end of the year FRER 2,765 2,413

Presented after appropriate offsetting

as follows: ESIKETIEREERAT
Deferred tax assets BIEFTISH A~ (2,467) (699)
Deferred tax liabilities BRIEFR 5t fafR 5,232 3,112
Deferred tax liabilities, net FRBIEREHRAE 2,765 2,413
The components and movement of deferred tax liabilities TEARM B E BT SR R AN B8 = e
and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as RERS, MAREEIREZBRERNT:
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities Unbilled Provision for
of the Group AREFBLEF F R revenue  withholding tax Total
eI =L PN AR FRT T 23
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT ARMFT ARMFRT
2016
At beginning of year FEHESR 111 3,001 3,112
Recognised in the profit or
loss TN AR s 1,575 545 2,120
At end of year FRER 1,686 3,546 5,232
2015
At beginning of year FHER 2,512 - 2,512
Recognised in the profit or
loss NS ke (2,401) 3,001 600
At end of year FRER 111 3,001 3,112
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18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Continued) 18. RIEATEH (B

Accrued
outsourcing
charges and  Accrued Allowance for
Deferred tax assets ZAREMHIBEILE  Accrued purchases outsourcing inventories

of the Group MEHE~ bonus RMB ‘000 charges obsolescence Others Total
B RItINE FERFRIA
IRa %Al B & #HA Ak E Hite 2it
$ $ $ $ $ $
2016
At beginning of year &R (246) (164) (202) = (87) (699)
Recognised in the
profit or loss DTSk 2 (746) (677) (405) 62  (1,768)
At end of year FRER (248) (910) (879) (405) (25)  (2,467)
2015
At beginning of year  fE¥]4ESK (205) - (285) (23) (513)
Recognised in the
profit or loss NSk (41) (164) 83 - (64) (186)
At end of year FRGESR (246) (164) (202) - (87) (699)
Others pertain to cost of sales related to unbilled revenue. B At EER A MBI K EHER A
No deferred tax liabilities has been recognised on the FARIBMEART107, 629, 0005 (2015
remaining undistributed earnings of the subsidiary amounting F£:. ARM90,017,0007T) BIFRIEKSD
to RMB 107,629,000 (2015: RMB 90,017,000) as it is W H A RERIN AR, FHRix
probable that such undistributed earnings will be reinvested AR NBEU S AT RENS T ol 7 L B9 R 3k
for the foreseeable future as part of the Company’s continuing EARNBEHI/RETFFARINBEE
investment in the subsidiary. B,
19. REVENUE 19. ELBA
Group
&M
2016 2015

RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARATR

Sale of goods FZRHE 76,705 101,409
Subcontracting services 9 E1AR S 60,272 40,066
136,977 141,475
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20.

21.

22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 20. HEERA
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFE ARGFT
Impairment loss on trade receivables B B AE & B
written back (Note 31(iii)) (BEE31Gii)) 94 552
Gain on sale of scrap materials & E R 214 532
Government grants BURTAMER 323 170
Interest income ST PN 107 516
Foreign exchange gain, net AINC RS 2,041 1,412
Others Efth 4 -
2,783 3,182
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 2. HiEE®HE
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFE ARGFT
Impairment of trade receivables B SRR B A
(Note 31 (iii)) (BsE: 31 Giii)) 4,608 -
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment REE. HEIEESHR 26 137
Penalty charges SiEN - 81
Others Hitb 30 4
4,664 222
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 22. RIAX
Group
&M=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFE ARGFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses * TH. FHekitd * 25,611 24,191
Other personnel expenses HtRATHX 1,526 1,539
Short-term employees’ benefits SHIR T /&% 27,137 25,730
Contributions to defined contribution
plans IRIAE R BK 3,781 3,641
30,918 29,371
* This includes directors’ remuneration as disclosed in Note 23 * HEESTFMET23 828 E S =5,

and 28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)n\j‘%j:&%% B1;J- 5I For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 £;ZE20164E12/531 1t

Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 55 9 A B

23. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 23. FaoFiE
This is determined after charging / (crediting) the following: Eifﬂ%%?ﬂ B/ GtAN) THImEEHE
Group
&M=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTTRE ARBFR
Impairment loss on trade receivables 37 45T T S ek B A % (B
written back (Note 31 (iii)) (Bi3E31 Gii)) (94) (552)
Allowance for inventory obsolescence FREIERZE 2,700 643
Amortisation of land use right T E R 251 251
Audit fees HiT A
- auditors of the Company - KABEHIE 1,061 1,120
- other auditors - HA=EIHIE 60 174
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment BRI ERIR 16,922 16,018
Directors’ fees BEEH
- directors of holding company - ERARES 1,458 1,340
- directors of subsidiaries - FRAREE 160 27
Directors' remuneration EEHN
- directors of the Company - AARESE 440 -
- directors of subsidiaries - FREIESE 409 1,303
Foreign exchange gain, net AINCIER (2,041) (1,142)
Impairment loss on trade receivables ST RO B 4,608 -
Personnel expenses (Note 22) * RBRIAX (MiF22) * 30,918 29,371
* Includes directors’ remuneration as disclosed in this note. *  BIEWETARNLENESTHE.
24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24. FREWH
Major components of income tax expense for the year ended T12A3 BN EZEMEH A ZAMRER 570
31 December were: T
Group
&M=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTTRE ARGFR
Current tax KEAFR &
- Current year - KEE 1,137 5,636
- Under provision in prior year - T FEEARAERE 116 174
- Withholding tax on dividend income - BREWATRINFE 1,089 849
2,342 6,659
Deferred tax (Note 18) B (MHE18)
- Origination and reversal of temporary - EEZESHZE
differences RikE 352 414
2,694 7,073
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

24. P8

The reconciliation of the tax expense and the product of

BE I X F I FERT H LR RAFR

accounting profit multiplied by the applicable rate is as follows: SN TS
Group
&HF
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARGFE  ARGFT
Profit before income tax FRASHLRTFIE 4,987 18,097
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of P EDEERER25% 2 Bl
25% (2015: 25%) (20154 : 25%) 1,247 4,524

Tax effects of: kB AT S5 5200 -
- expenses not deductible for tax

purpose - FAIEH S AR LNk &R 331 774
- expenses incurred in tax-free

jurisdictions - TRBEEXMNER 1,216 1,368
- undistributed profit of PRC - HEFLRRSE

subsidiary Fliaz Fnm (187) 3,001
- tax incentive - B (1,118) (3,617)

1,489 6,050

Over provision of tax in prior years T EERSBIRE 116 174
Withholding tax on dividend income B 2UE T F0FE 1,089 849
Income tax expense FR5#%i 2% A 2,694 7,073

The Company:

The Company is operating

in a tax-free jurisdiction.

The dividend received which is eliminated has no tax
consequences; and the corporate expenses incurred are
included in the “expenses incurred in tax-free jurisdiction” line
item in the tax reconciliation above.

Subsidiaries:

(i)

(ii)

Best Success, which is subject to Hong Kong tax rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%), does not have taxable profit since
its incorporation on 23 April 2005.

In accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC
for High Technology Enterprises and various approval
documents issued by the PRC Tax Bureau, Changzhou
3D being awarded the “High Technology Enterprise”
status, enjoys a concessionary tax rate of 15%, as
compared to the statutory tax rate for PRC companies
of 25%. The concessionary income tax status is valid for
3 years and is subjected to renewal when it expires in
August 2018. This benefit was disclosed under the tax
incentive in the tax reconciliation during the year.

N

ARREETRREEXA. HIHMAR
BREHRERSTZM, Bl RE
EELRBII KT “RREEXME
R” mEH.

NGIR

(i) BREBRATRATE16.5% (2015
F:16.5%) MEBNHREELE,
H200554 8 23 MM AR ES
L pURERCNR =TT

(ii) MR¥EPE S E S HML B SH
BRAR Al F & A HEE SR PS5
%, BMNZHERT ‘SRRt
A g, EZI5%MIMERE,
25 % B R E AR BIEERE
HILERSHRE DA AIEE
201858 HEAAAT AN IR . XLLF|
mAEFARNBRBCHR R S HhAS
E&BE.
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25.

26.

27.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

EARNINGS PER SHARE 25. |
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit BREAWEMRZUARDTIRERN 5%F
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted TR AR W U S A A B AR =t
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the H,
financial year.
Group
&M
2016 2015
Net profit attributable to equity holders &/ TIRR 2R K7 5% F3iE
of the Company (RMB’000) (ARMF 2,293 11,024
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for basic and diluted ER&EAUE Z NIFE
earnings per share L@ E 27,468,473 27,468,473
Basic and diluted earnings per share FRREARWEE
(RMB cents per share) (BRARM®) 8.35 40.13
Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings FREENEEEREARKEHEE,
per share as no share options, warrants or other compound ATFAREERNKAMBEEER, HITIAE
financial instruments with dilutive effect were granted during the W, WL Eft G EINNES S
financial year or outstanding at the end of the financial year. BT B ERiTE.
DIVIDENDS 26. R
Group and Company
EHF AT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRE ARGFRT
Interim exempt (o_ne-tler) paid in respect 7E BT BUE B % {4 ch R 4
of current financial year of RMB 0.25 . Pt e
. _ (B—H) BE@BAR0. 25T ARM
per ordinary share (2015: RMB 0.25 (20155 - GEEAR0. 255¢ ART)
per ordinary share) - HEIERD. ST 6,867 6,867

Dividend above is distributed from balance of retained earnings
of RMB 3,810,000 (Note 7) with the remaining amount of RMB
3,057,000 from the Share Premium account (Note 4).

ERBRERNMNZEARMS, 810, 0007THI
RBAERGR (MUE7) RRERA@MN
BIEARMS3, 057, 000TTHYRI R &80 (Fff
E4) hHEITHEH,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. MEMEZNY
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMmTR ARGFR
Cash in hand me 55 117
Bank balances RITEER 50,347 56,760
Fixed deposits (Note A) Bz (MFE A - 10,680
Cash and bank balances as stated in the ERERRERTH
statement of financial position MESRITER 50,402 67,557
Less: Pledged deposits (Note B) W KFNER BHE B) (4,741) (8,782)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated AHUNERERTH
in the consolidated statement of cash flows I &FEZM4 45,661 58,775
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has bank balances
placed with banks in the PRC denominated in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounting to RMB 31,047,000 (2015:
RMB 50,890,000). The RMB is not freely convertible to
foreign currencies. Under the People’s Republic of China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorized to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Note A

The fixed deposit of the Group has maturity period of 1 year, and yields
interest income at effective rate of 3.39% per annum in year 2015. The
Group has terminated the fixed deposit in May 2016.

Note B

Bank balances of RMB 4,741,000 (2015: RMB 8,782,000) are pledged
in connection with bills payable facilities (Note 14).

27.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

REMAFNY @

HE20165F12A310, AEAGFEHTAT
FENRITRIUART Y, EREH
F ARM31, 047, 0007 (20154E: AR
50, 890,0007T) . ARMAEEBHE IR
SN . FEREINCES EBFEEITH.
SHEFMTHINCEREH T, AELARK
B WIRENRIFRINSO ERRTT, BA
R iR ma.

5 EA

AERAF A EHINEREFR, HT2015
FIRMLIGES. 9% MBUFI B . KEH
7E20165F5 B2 1E T EHATE R

Eﬁ. ~‘f‘ B

RITEE R4, 741, 000t AR (20155F: AR
M8, 782,0007T) XEHFMSNTERENEL

HEHEEES (MEE14) .

The movement in pledged deposits: AR ENE
Group
&
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRX  ARMBFR
At beginning of the year FENER 8,782 13,245
Placement of pledged deposits HMEIIRER 9,894 -
Withdrawal of pledged deposits REEIRER (13,935) (4,463)
At end of the year FERER 4,741 8,782
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

Some of the arrangements with related parties (as defined in
Note 2) and the effects of these bases determined between
the parties are reflected elsewhere in this report. Transactions
between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are
related companies of the Company, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are
disclosed below:

28.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

XEGER

S5XBAHES I nE25hEX)
AR % 73 2 181 55 7K S 01e A 18 8 R X D 4
PRI LIRS RS AT REHM
BT, HEXARMARZENGZS,
BEAHFREPHEERR, NELMER
F. NEFAREMERG Z BN S MY
LT :

Group
&=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTTRE ARGFR
Key management personnel
compensation FEEBAGRER
Directors of the Group: SHES:
- Salaries and bonus (i) - ek () 489 1,274
- Contributions to defined contribution
plans - RPEEATRE T 18 29
- Over provision of director’s incentives
in prior years - FFEBFHRT (625) -
- Directors’ fee (Note 23) - BEH (MbE 23) 1,618 1,367
1,500 2,670
Other key management personnel HEMEEEBAR
- Salaries and bonus - FrefEa 1,015 926
- Contributions to defined contribution
plans - ZFEEATRE T 11 11
2,526 3,607
Total compensation comprise: BERBRE
Short-term employee benefits TR T H&= 2,497 3,567
Contributions to defined contributions
plans - RPEEARE TR 29 40
2,526 3,607

Key management personnel are those persons having
the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity. Directors, Financial
Controller and General Manager are considered key
management personnel.

(i) The remuneration of directors includes the director’s
incentive for the year amounting to RMB 49,000 (2015:
RMB 840,000) which is determined by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the performance of Group’s
profit.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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29.

30.

31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

FUTURE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. FEFAEE
Capital expenditure as at 31 December but not recognised in BARFZE2016512831H, HEHEM
the financial statements are as follows: SwRFF AT :
Group
&
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARGFE ARGFI
In respect of acquisition of plant and BEMBEE
equipment MM E
Contracted BEEY = 21,386
Not contracted IR &L - 13,849
SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. HWER
The Group operates in only one operating segment, i.e. zlsiﬂﬁflfﬁﬂk%ﬁ-}%ﬂ, BImt = dm
the manufacture and sale of vane products and related E"J*'JJE'—ﬁ%EEi*H%Eqﬁ@Hﬁ%LﬁE
subcontracting services. Subcontracting services are not HE%E’\J%%#};%% 5UE§[$?;LEEE§E
separately reported to the CEO and the management, as it is ﬂ%?ﬁ? 79%5%'13573?2??:‘?&*?35
considered as the same business with manufacturing activities £, ﬁt?‘gmﬁ'—jﬁjmﬁﬂmﬁﬂg
due to shared technology and production processes. The . Zli%}fﬁ?gﬁﬂ’ﬂf‘nuﬁl\@,ﬂﬁ%_—'jzk
products for which the Group provided subcontracting services %Fﬁ%llmﬁg#nnﬁlﬂ;ﬁljﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁflﬁ‘%
are similar to the products that the Group manufactures. ERAShBEFPHORASHRARMRm~
The subcontracting services arose due to five customer’s £
arrangement to source for its own raw material.
The operating segment has been identified on the basis of ﬂk%ﬁ%ﬂ%*ﬁ?@@%ﬂ%ﬁi%ﬁﬁ%u%iﬂ
internal management reports that are regularly reviewed by i‘l’ #%\Kﬁﬁﬂgﬁgﬂ*ﬂﬁo\ 1%
management of the Group. Management of the Group reviews Eﬂ%fxﬁ’fﬁﬁ?&‘%ﬂ‘]%%, LA iR
the overall results of the Group as a whole to make decisions 2@8;&1‘;(;&%;1&, FIR YR L B —1R
about resource allocation. Accordingly, no further analysis of =R — S A
this single reporting segment has been prepared.
Revenue of approximately RMB 26,046,000 (2015: RMB REBXEPREBEEFBA DL
13,367,000) and RMB 3,804,000 (2015: RMB 9,206,000) AAR26,046, 0007 (20154 : AR
are derived from overseas customers in Japan and Korea 13,367, 0007T) RARMS3, 804, 0007
respectively. The major customers in the PRC contributing 10% (EO15£E?,\206, 0007T) - EZF%W)\
or more to the Group’s revenue is disclosed in Note 31 (iii). IE~§10%§¥HJ:E?FFI%%F'1E§», =
The entire of the Group’s entire non-current assets are located ;‘&%TW?%“ (iii). AEAMEHIFE
in PRC. BREFFEATHE.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. &MTR
Financial risk management objectives and policies Sk B E ARABUR

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group does not have
a formal risk management policies and guidelines. However,
the Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
It is the Group’s policy not to trade in derivative contracts.

AEFAXRBEMTASENETERNGE
R (BIESNCRBEFF RME) , &
ERHMERNEFRERRNE. RERHR
EXMMEERBRMES . A,
ERENTIHREASIREAR L &R
BURBLEINT . AEFAN—IMBERRT it
ITITE AN S,
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31. SMTR
31.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€9

SRR EEBFEMBGE (80

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) AR

0] Market risk

(a)  Foreign exchange risk (a) SISCRBE

Currently, the PRC government imposes control
over foreign currencies, RMB. The official
currency in the PRC, is not freely convertible.
Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter into
exchange transactions through the People’s
Bank of China or other authorised financial
institutions. The Group has not entered into any
derivative instruments for hedging or trading

Bal, hEBMAXEINEL

MARMEITES, EHEH
B, ETEEBHLIRE
SRS, PESZERIDATL
B3 P E A RRITEHH AR
HERMAEENINCZ Z . &
EAH TS SEM SIS
BRMITE T RMED . A&

purposes. The Group’s currency exposure is as AR MR T
follows:
Group United Hong
&7 Singapore  Chinese States Kong
2016 dollars  Renminbi dollars dollars Total
kT AR E BT B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTFRE AR®FRE ARTHFTRT ARGmFR ARMTFR
Financial assets SEET
Cash and bank balances MERRITER 2,294 31,102 16,659 347 50,402
Trade receivables I e A - 157673 6,372 - 164,045
Other receivables H b EaIn - 378 - - 378
2,294 189,153 23,031 347 214,825
Financial liabilities SRR
Trade payables IEEYLe - (52,409) - - (52,409)
Other payables and accruals H AR {7 R Rt 500 (543) (3,963) - - (4,506)
Bank loan RITHE - (7,000) - - (7,000)
(543)  (63,372) - - (63915)
Net financial assets AERA 1751 125,781 23,031 347 150,910

Less: Net financial assets
denominated in the

- (347)  (126,128)

respective entities’ W RIS R
functional currencies THERY R B - (125781)
Foreign currency exposure M 1,751 -

23,031 - 24,782
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31.

Financial
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt S5 4R AR BT E

0] Market risk (Continued)

@)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. EMTHR &)
risk management objectives and policies SHRREEEFMBEE (4
Ci) maAKE (@
Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) ISCRBE (80
Group United Hong
0| Singapore  Chinese States Kong
2016 dollars  Renminbi dollars dollars Total
g AR eI BT 2t
RMB’000  RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMmFRE ARTmFR ARMFRT AR®HFR ARGMFRT
Financial assets SRbEE
Cash and bank balances ~ M&RRITHER 6,328 51,007 9,908 314 67,557
Trade receivables RISk R - 155359 12,955 - 168,314
Other receivables HitMUEImn - 430 - - 430
6,328 206,796 22,863 314 236,301
Financial liabilities SRR
Trade payables IRl - 46,254 - - 46,254
Other payables and accruals E AR ff & Rt 70 1,003 10,166 - - 11,169
1,003 56,420 - - 57,423
Net financial assets BERAS 5325 150,376 22,863 314 178,878
Less: Net financial assets
denominated in the
respective entities’ W BB S
functional currencies AR - (150,376) - (314)  (150,690)
Foreign currency exposure S 5,325 - 22,863 - 28,188
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|'| -J-: ¥ For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 #; E20164£12/531 H 1L
)\ & X B * /E Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 22 9A il

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

@) Market risk (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

SMTR ()

SRR EEBFEMBGE (80

(i) AR

(a) SRR (48

Company/A&] Singapore Chinese
2016 dollars Renminbi Total
T AEM Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEDFT AEBFT ARTBFT

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances & RRITER 2,294 — 2,294
Financial liabilities SRR
Other payables and

accruals E bR R R - 543 543
Due to subsidiaries NAFFARFm (JER

(non-trade) ) - 24,204 24,204

- 24,747 24,747

Net financial assets /

(liabilities) BB/ R 2,294 (24,747) (22,453)
Less: Net financial

liabilities denominated

in the Company’s WA ARITEEMERTIT

functional currency NS AL b - 24,747 24,747
Foreign currency

exposure S MBS 2,294 — 2,294
Company /A&
2015
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances M&RRITHER 6,328 — 6,328
Financial liabilities SRAR
Other payables and

accruals EA R AT R R TR 1,003 48 1,051
Due to subsidiaries MATF A BRI

(non-trade) (FERRZ) - 22,767 22,767

1,003 22,815 23,818

Net financial assets /

(liabilities) BEREE/ (AR 5,325 (22,815) (17,490)
Less: Net financial

liabilities denominated

in the Company’s WE: B RGIRANH

functional currency A ThEE M ER - 22,815 22,815
Foreign currency

exposure S MBS 5,325 - 5,325
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial
(Continued)

risk management objectives and policies

() Market risk (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk sensitivity

The following table details the sensitivity to a
5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in the
Chinese Renminbi against the relevant foreign
currencies. This analysis is based on foreign
currency exchange rate variances that the Group
considered to be reasonably possible at the end
of the reporting period.

If the Chinese Renminbi strengthens by
5% (2015: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies with all the other variables held
constant, profit for the year will (decrease)/
increase by:

31.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

SMTR &)
SHRREEERMER (5

(i) WiaRE
(a) SO (25

SINC B U R

TRIFMEHPAAE RSN P E
ARM5%IE IR S BX & 49 5%
E. ot 2RERERAA
THREHRTRESEL IS
MICRER,

HPREARMAERINTICE
FHE5% (20155 : 5%) , 7EHE
HEHATHERT, EEF
g (TR /8K

United
Singapore States
dollars dollars Total
Finig T e Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  ARMFRX ARBFRT
Group &M
2016
Profit for the year IR EEFE 74 979 1,053
2015
Profit for the year IEEEFE 226 972 1,198
Company AF]
2016
Profit for the year AREEEFE 115 - 115
2015
Profit for the year A AT 226 — 226
A weakening of Chinese Renminbi against above F12B31Bn ARTIZERN L

foreign currencies at 31 December would have
had the equal but opposite effect on the above
foreign currencies to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

The Group is also exposed to currency
translation risk arising from its net investment
in its foreign operation in Hong Kong including
intragroup balances. The Group’s net investment
in Hong Kong is not hedged as currency position
in Hong Kong Dollar is considered to be long-
term in nature.

wIND AR, BRI
Mg, FEEMSHEAERIRR
™, #Shmeesmt.

AERATFHIGEE BHEHNE
EFREFENEMERK
b, BIEREINIHER. &
SHETERNSREFRBX
B, EAFEERESR
LW ARKERE.
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Wt S5 4R AR BT E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Market risk (Continued)
(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily from its fixed deposits included in cash
and cash equivalents and bank term loan. The
Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable
interest rates available without increasing its
foreign currency exposure.

The impact of changes in interest rate on the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities is minimal.
As such, the effect of a sensitivity analysis on the
Group’s profit for the year would be negligible.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations and
to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash
on demand to meet expected operational expenses
including the servicing of financial obligations.

All the financial liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 are repayable on demand or
due within 1 year from the reporting date. The carrying
amount recorded represents the contractual cash flows
of these financial liabilities except for interest bearing
bank term loan (Note 16) with a carrying amount and
contractual cash flows within 1 year of RMB 7,000,000
and RMB 7,087,000 respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group’s major class of financial
assets are cash and cash equivalents, and trade and
other receivables. Bank balances and fixed deposits
are placed with regulated national or provincial
financial institutions in the PRC and a Singapore-
based multinational bank. Bills receivables (Note 12)
are mainly redeemable from state-owned or listed
commercial banks in the PRC. Therefore, credit risk
arises mainly from the inability of its customers to make
payments when due.

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 & Z20164 12531 H1E
Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB’) 25 A B

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. EMTHR &)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SR EIBEREMEBE (4
(Continued)
(iiiy  Credit risk (Continued) (iii) fEHIRK: (20
For trade receivables, the Group adopts the policy of BNz, EFAREZHEK
dealing only with long time customers of appropriate HREFERIEERF, UWBBER
credit history to mitigate credit risk. For other financial RGBSR, MTHMAEESREE,
assets, the Group adopts the policy of dealing only with ANERAXBREEESERERERFS
high credit quality counterparties. The counterparty’s EREBSR . X G FRFT SR
payment profile and credit exposure are continuously ERNE, THEEENESIEME
monitored at the entity level by the respective A EHHREESEXZHKETmHITE
management and at the Group level by the Board of . EHE Bm, RESERSH
Directors. The average credit period on sales of goods Z AR E 90K (20154 : 90
and subcontracting services is 90 days (2015: 90 days). K)o A%t idnHA R U T =X E Y F
No interest is imposed on overdue trade receivables. =
As the Group and Company does not hold any ATAERAS NS HTIFEEMIT
collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for W, sXERAKEROAE—E
each class of financial instruments is the carrying S TERIZAZEMEMSZIRAET
amount of that class of financial instruments presented S TENKENE. EVSIRA
on the statement of financial position. The amounts B B L ) T 2 5 T AT T
presented in the statement of financial position are BAEES, RIBUENZIEMYET
net of allowances for impairment of trade receivables, HEZFIPETEE EMmits.
estimated by management based on prior experience
and the current economic environment.
The age analysis of trade receivables is as follows: MU =R B MK ES 20T
Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARDTRE ARGTR
Not Impaired
Neither past due nor impaired KA EEEISH TR E 34,134 56,930
Past due but not impaired EER{E R R E
- Past due less than 3 months - wELF 3 MNA 23,231 34,041
- Past due over 3 months - @I 3 MR 5,496 51,120
28,727 85,161
Impaired BiE
Impaired trade receivables VERIENSE &N 72,541 4,731
Less: Allowance for impairment loss ~ #AB&: FEREES (9,245) (4,731)
63,296 -
Net trade receivables (Note 12) BN (MEE 12) 126,157 142,091
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Neither past due nor impaired

The amounts that are neither past due nor impaired
mainly represents the balances only from the Group’s
major customers in PRC, Japan and Korea, with active
or established trading records with the Group and
steady collection pattern.

Past due but not impaired

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
are substantially companies who are customers with
long trading history with the Group and have steady
collection record. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been significant change in credit quality and the amount
are still considered fully recoverable.

Out of the balances which were past due over 3 months
but not impaired as at 31 December 2016, an amount of
RMB 5,251,000 has been subsequently collected either
in cash or bills receivables up to the date of this report.

Impaired trade receivables

The Group has recognised impairment losses on trade
receivables which are individually determined as follows:

(@ Impairment loss on receivables with default in
payments and has minimal transactions and/or
no collection during the year and up to the date
of this report:

Cumulative impairment allowance recognised
on such overdue balances as at 31 December
2016 amounted to RMB 4,695,000 (2015: RMB
4,731,000).

(b) Impairment loss on an active major customer but
with significant delay in payment:

Cumulative impairment allowance recognised
on such debtor as at 31 December 2016 is as
follows:

SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iiiy  Credit risk (Continued) (iii) 1EBERE (80

Impaired trade receivables (Continued)

BUE W FR (4

Group
&H&
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE  ARGFR
Representing balances which are: AEZEMA
Not past due RAEEA 1,485 -
Past due iBHA 3,065 -
4,550 -

The Group does not hold any collateral over the
amounts outstanding as at reporting date, and the
management is of the view that from the past historical
experience, such balances are not recoverable.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables individually
determined to be impaired and the movement in the
related allowance for impairment loss are as follows:

AERATHREHHAHREIREE
MIFFAEARAR, MERRIA
A, RIBSERELZE, ZXER
=FEEIE .

MR RN E, ZERE
BB EE & X AR R 4740
T:

Group
&M=
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARDTRE  ARSTR
Allowance for impairment loss are BAEE ML T R
made on debts which are: W&
Not past due S BEEA 1,485 -
Past due less than 1 year WHILCTF 1 &£ 3,231 120
Past due over 1 year WERE 1 F 4,529 4,611
9,245 4,731
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impaired trade receivables (Continued)

The movement in allowance for impairment loss is as
follows:

SMITR @
SHMRREEBFEMBEE (80
(iii) fRRIRE (@)

BB U MEER (45

BB ERNERNFERMT

Group
&H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARGFR

Balance at beginning of the year FESR 4,731 5,283
Allowance made during the year BAET R 4,608 -
Allowance written back during the

year AR TR EH (94) (552)
Balance at end of the year FRER 9,245 4,731

Credit risk concentration

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are 2
customers (2015: 2 customers) located in the PRC and
principally engaged in development and manufacture
of power equipment representing 85% (2015: 90%)
of the net trade receivables balance (excluding bills
receivables) as at 31 December 2016. Approximately
RMB 41,572,000 and RMB 50,274,000 (2015: RMB
89,061,000 and RMB 25,616,000), representing 30%
and 37% (2015: 63% and 18%) respectively of the
Group’s revenue are generated from these 2 customers
(2015: 2 customers) during the financial year.

The remaining net trade receivables balance (excluding
bill receivables) were due from (a) various small
domestic customers and (b) overseas customers in
Japan and Korea, which are part of listed entities in the
respective countries.

Bills receivables (Note 12)

Bills receivables of the Group received as a settlement
for trade debts are issued by state-owned or listed
commercial banks in the PRC. The remaining maturity
period is ranging from 22 days to 12 months from the
reporting date. As of the date of this report, those bills
receivables with maturity period within 3 months from
the reporting date amounting to RMB 10,839,398 (2015:
RMB 17,206,000) had been fully recovered and balance
is not due for redemption.
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SMTR &)
SHRREEERMER (5

risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments by category (iv) ST RS
The carrying amounts of the different categories of BERE EINEm T ANKE S
financial instruments are as follows: MR: T
Group Company
&H NS]|
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRE ARGFR ARMFRE ARMFE
Financial assets SR
Loans and receivables
(including cash and BN (B
bank balances) DMEMEZFND 214,826 236,301 2,294 6,328
Financial liabilities ERLTR
Financial liabilities at & REfAf&EAY
amortised cost SIPERRA 63,915 57,423 24,747 23,818
Capital risk management policies and objectives HEAR R EEBENB R

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
within the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, net
of cash and cash equivalents, and the equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in
Notes 3 to 7.

The Board of Directors reviews the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the Board
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on guidance of the
Board, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from 2015.

As disclosed in Note 5, the PRC incorporated subsidiary
of the Group is required by the Foreign Enterprise
Law of PRC to contribute to and to maintain a non-
distributable statutory reserve fund, the utilisation
of which is subject to approval of the relevant PRC
authorities. This externally imposed capital requirement
has been complied with by the above-mentioned
subsidiary for the financial years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

FEAEBHER, UHKRERAN
OSSR RE B AR A E A — DR
R, IR & ARR i@ 57 55 0
gﬂ%ﬁ% B9 44 ok (= 4R F) 25 48 %

AEANEAERHERS, 2UE
RO &FNPIMNERARTZAH
BRE, HPEGSmKERMIES-7
HERITIRAE, HEEMRIEH

o

EECEBEHEENAELLEN. 1FA
BRIMEHEEN -, BEELEEH
EAREURSZERFABXIN
. IRIBESS BEST, SEK
BE RS, #RAIT, UEH
REITFEHBEREALGH. AE
HRIEEIRTREEE 20158 LURIREFE

Faisy

X o

M ESINE, APFEARLFE
ShEeENE, AERMFEE
M AR S B F A B LU B H 435 3E
BLEZEATRE, HEAMEESH
EBAXEEIRIIHE. XMkE
IR EAREREHE LR T AFE
F, HESHE 2016520155
12831 BT,
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FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at
fair value

The Group and the Company had no financial assets
or liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring or non-
recurring basis in 2016 and 2015.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that
are not carried at fair value and whose carrying
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
(including amounts due to subsidiaries), and bank term
loan are reasonable approximation of fair values due
to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that
are not carried at fair value and whose carrying
amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair
value

As at reporting date, there are no financial instruments
in this category.
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SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS

il e N L SAT s As at 17 March 2017 F20174E3817H
sz:ﬂéj—tl—l_ ﬁ*ll' Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB") ZfH A Bif

Class of equity securities Number of equity securities Voting rights
BNESES PUESEER 23
Ordinary One vote per share
. 27,468,473 n
i@ BR—F
There are no treasury shares in the issued share capital of the Company.
ARRERITREAFH TEFR.
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 17 MARCH 2017
BZE20174E3A17ABE SRR
NO. OF
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHARES
SRR BEAY % RS iR %
1-99 17 2.02 900 0.00
100 - 1,000 298 35.43 195,143 0.71
1,001 - 10,000 455 54.10 1,711,064 6.23
10,001 - 1,000,000 67 7.97 4,384,102 15.96
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 4 0.48 21,177,264 77.10
TOTAL 23t 841 100.00 27,468,473 100.00
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS &R %
(as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 17 March 2017)
BE2017F3RI7THIER T EEZRFEZM
NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES
BHNR
DEEMED
DIRECT INTEREST INTEREST
B % B g8 %
LIU MING XJBRSE4E 8,240,000 29.98 0 0
ALLPORT LIMITED 6,264,340 22.81 0 0
ASUKA DBJ INVESTMENT LPS? 1,200,000 4.37 6,264,340 22.81
MERCURIA INVESTMENTS CO., LTD.2 0 0 7,464,340 27.18
ITOCHU CORPORATION?® 0 0 7,464,340 27.18
YUGEN KAISHA SIMON MURRAY AND
COMPANY JAPAN 3,300,000 12.01 0 0
YONEHARA SHINICHI* 0 0 3,300,000 12.01
Notes Fff3E:
1. Asuka DBJ Investment LPS is the registered holder of all the issued shares of Allport Limited.
Asuka DBJ Investment LPSEAllport Limitedff A 2 & TR BB
2. Mercuria Investments Co., Ltd., formerly known as AD Capital Co., Ltd. is the sole general partner of Asuka DBJ Investment LPS
Mercuria Investments Co., Ltd., LART#RAD Capital Co., Ltd.2Asuka DBJ Investment LPSHIME—EZ B A KA .
3. ITOCHU Corporation is a large shareholder of Mercuria Investments Co., Ltd. and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the

shares held by Mercuria Investments Co., Ltd.

ITOCHU CorporationMercuria Investments Co., Ltd. BIAR%ZR, Eitt#AiBEMercuria Investments Co., Ltd. 8 RISBIINE

4. Yugen Kaisha Simon Murray And Company Japan is wholly-owned by Yonehara Shinichi.
Yugen Kaisha Simon Murray And Company JapaniZ Yonehara Shinichifd £ &+ /A&,
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SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS

il e N L SAT s As at 17 March 2017 F20174E3817H
sz:ﬂéj—tl—l_ ﬁ*ll' Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB") ZfH A A Bif

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS B=+XE%

NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES
FS #3 BiHER %
1 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 10,092,000 36.74
2 ALLPORT LIMITED 6,264,340 22.81
3 YUGEN KAISHA SIMON MURRAY AND COMPANY JAPAN 3,300,000 12.01
4 CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 1,520,924 5.54
5 HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD 711,000 2.59
6 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 393,360 1.43
7 TAN YEW MENG 357,200 1.30
8 DB NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 300,000 1.09
9 MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 250,200 0.91
10 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 234,522 0.85
11 WANG YU LONG DENIS 200,400 0.73
12 LIM SIAN KOK 151,700 0.55
13 ONG KANG CHIM 125,000 0.46
14 TAN TIEN SENG 124,300 0.45
15 XIA ZHIFU 120,000 0.44
16 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 72,690 0.26
17 ENG CHIAW KOON 70,200 0.26
18 LIM POH LEE 70,000 0.25
19 BOON KIA IN VINCENT(WEN JIAYIN) 65,000 0.24
20 ONG SOO YONG 53,700 0.20
TOTAL &it 24,476,536 89.11

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDING IN HANDS OF PUBLIC & ATFrEERBBESLE

Based on the information available to the Company as at 17 March 2017, approximately 30.83% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company were held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited is complied with.

RIBEBARBITIREZE20174E3A17HAIZERL, KA30. 8N ALR B L ITEBRWAAXTEE, BAETT (FMKESEZHE
RARLETFM) BIHE.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

}—_H_n— Hn k/—\ \% % For the financial year ended 31 December 2016 &;E2016% 12431 H 1k
2 NX 7]~ z~ l I:I Amounts in Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) 25 A B

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of
SHANGHAI TURBO ENTERPRISES LTD (the “Company”) will be held
at 4 Robinson Road, #04-01 The House of Eden, Singapore 048543
on Saturday, 15 April 2017 at 9.30 a.m. to transact the following
businesses:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Statement and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 together with the Independent
Auditors’ Report thereon. (Resolution 1)

2. To declare a final dividend of RMB 0.125 per ordinary share
(tax not applicable) for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 (FY2015: RMB 0.25 per ordinary share). (Resolution 2)

3. To re-elect Mr Liu Ming as Director of the Company retiring
pursuant to Article 86(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association. (Resolution 3)

Mr Liu Ming will, upon re-election as Director of the Company,
remain as a member of the Nominating Committee and will be
considered non-independent.

4, To re-elect the following Directors of the Company retiring
pursuant to Article 85(6) of the Company’s Articles of
Association:

Dr Daniel Liu Danjun (Resolution 4)
Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin (Resolution 5)
Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong (Resolution 6)

Dr Daniel Liu Danjun will, upon re-election as Director of the
Company, remain as a member of the Audit Committee,
Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee and will
be considered non-independent.

Mr Tan Wee Peng Kelvin will, upon re-election as Director of
the Company, remain as Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Nominating Committee and Remuneration
Committee and will be considered independent.

Mr Raymond Lim Sian Heong will, upon re-election as Director
of the Company, remain as a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee will be considered independent.

5. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of RMB1,800,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2017 (FY2016:
RMB1,420,000) (Resolution 7)

6. To re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP as the
Independent Auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

(Resolution 8)

#iEM, LEMHEARERATIETF2017454
B15H 28175 498304 F4 Robinson Road,
#04-01 The House of Eden, Singapore 048543
BAFERFEAS, LUHSEBEITER:

BB

1. BEAHBIEESFR. B E20165128
JMNHZMEEE BT SRERLHE ML

HIHmHR S
B—TURIL

2. SMIREEH ZE20165E12831 Bz M BEE
HELER. 1255 T AR —RMERE
BRE. Q015MEBERIT: BEEAR0. 25

TTARM)
FEIHRIYL

3. EMEENREANT (F1E) $86(1) %
MEAFEMERN AR BEEXIALSE

FEZTRIY
X|BREE —BEHTRERANRES,
BB EFRRERSRRA. MIEHIAA

TERIMIIEES.

4. EMEERIEALT (F12) 5$85(6) %
AMEABEERAT AR RES:

XIFFEH L SEPEBURIYL
FrRiHTRE SERIURIL
RERHA S SBABURIYL

NAEBL-—BEMZEZREAAATE
E, BHEBEERERTRASHA. BRAE
REMARFHMERSRRA. FHENA
TEBIMIIEEN.

GiEEERE—BEHZEZETARALNTE
=, BHEETEHERSERE. BRE
RERARFMERSRKRR. IFHAA
BHEMIEES.

HELMAEE —BEHNZETALRLTE
=, BHEIETEHERSRARIFHME
REmER. thiFHIAREMIIEES.

5. BITE E2017F 12831 HIE 2 MTHEE 2
E180 AT ARMHESZHESF. (2016
M4 : 14273 T ARM)

FETURIYL

6. BEERREEE R EAERUHESHRA
AARMIHEHTIIHBENARREESMH

TEHFE
SBI\BURIYL

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 1 O 7
2016 FEREG



108

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

FERFASEM

By Order of the Board

Wong Yoen Har
Company Secretary
Singapore, 31 March 2017

Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the
“Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. A
proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

2. If a Shareholder being a Depositor whose name appears in the Depository
Register (as defined in Section 81SF of the Securities and Futures Act)
wishes to attend and vote at the Meeting, then he/she/it he must be shown to
have shares entered against his name in the Depository Register, as certified
by the CDP, at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time of the Meeting. If
he wishes to appoint a proxy to attend the Meeting, he must complete and
deposit the CDP Proxy Form at the office of the Singapore Share Transfer
Agent, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services Pte. Ltd., at 50 Raffles
Place #32-01, Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623 at least forty-eight
(48) hours before the time of the Meeting.

Personal data privacy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to
attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any adjournment
thereof, a member of the Company or a Depositor, as the case may be (i) consents
to the collection, use and disclosure of the member or Depositor’s personal data by
the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration
by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the
Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation
and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the
Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the
Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations
and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member
or a Depositor discloses the personal data of the member or Depositor’'s proxy(ies)
and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member or Depositor
has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the
collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data
of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that
the member or Depositor will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties,
liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member or
Depositor’s breach of warranty.
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